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We are in the right business at the
right time.

The world’s top organizations rely
on the human resources services
we provide.

Our continued success is simply a
matter of getting even better at what
we already do best for our clients.

We are focused on execution and on building the strang business
discipline that leads to quality client relationships and sustainable
financia! results. In 2007, we introduced Four Pillars of Shared Purpose
to guide our decisions and actions.



Dear Stockholders,

We entered fiscal 2007 with a mandate to stabilize parts of

our husiness, to clarify our go-forward strategy, and to deliver
solid financial results. [ spent considerable time with our clients,
our asseciates, ond our stockholders throughout the lost year,
learning what we were doing well and where we needed to
improve. It became clear to me that while our strategy was
relatively sound, we needed o more specific plen to grow and

a stronger focus an the fundamentals of execution.

Today's businesses ore challenged by o growing scorcity in the
human capital needed to run anincreasingly service-bosed
economy, and no one is better-positioned than Hewitt to antici-
pate and solve the complex people chollenges of the world’s
leading organizations. We intend to be not only the waorld’s
preeminent thought leader on human capital issues. but also
the company with the strongest record of helping clients
successfully execute their human capital strategies. Hewitt is
the premier brand in a high-growth industry and we are
confident we are in the right business...at the right time.

Fiscal 2007 resuits

Human resources outsourcing and consulting hold terrific
opportunities for robust profitable growth for the foresee-
able future. In 2007, we re-centered our business to better
position Hewitt to copitalize on these opportunities going
forward by building on strengths in our Consulting and Benefits
Outsourcing businesses, and being selective in pursuing anly
HR Business Process Qutsourcing (HR BPO) oppartunities
thot we can deliver with quality. We were encouraged with our
progress in 2007—stabilizing the HR BPO business, making
necessary investments in aur more established businesses,
and better managing our overall cost structure.

Net revenues for the 2007 fiscal year grew 5%, to $2.9 billion,
or 4% after adjusting for the decline in third-party revenues,
currency, and acquisitions. We recorded an operating loss of
$143 million, which included $409 million of charges. There
were two primary reasons for the charges. First, we determined
that our HR BPO business will be on a slower growth path, which
meant our goodwill ond certain assets related to this business
were impaired. Second, we took a number of strategic actions
toimprave productivity in both stoffing and facilities and to
settle some client and vendor issues. Some remaining actions
inthese areas will linger into fiscal 2008, but collectively, these
steps beiter position us for the future. Absent these issues, we
saw strong underlying improvement on key measures across
the business.

Overall, we were especially pleased with the healthy revenue
and margin performance of Consulting in 2007. We also saw
strong underlying margin exponsion in Benefits Outsourcing.
Our challenge going forward in this business is reaceelerating
our growth. We are making the necessary investments to
expand both our offering and our reach in the market. While
we've made progress stabilizing gur existing contract portfolio

in HRBPO, we have some mare work to do to improve the leng-
term financicl outlook and operating model of the business.

We also reported strong free cash flow in 2007, Qur significant
cash-generating capabilities allowed our Board to authorize a
$750 million stock repurchase program to return cash to our stock-
holders. Through November 9, 2007, we had repurchased about
$205 million, and we'l look to continue these efforts in 2008,

We took o number of recessary strategic steps in 2007 to
rebuild Hewitt for the future, and we're now entering 2008 in
g better position to improve the long-term growth and margin
profile of the Company.

Four pillars

During the year, [ introduced four pillars of shored purpose,
representing organizational disciplines that will underpin
our strategic initiatives and guide our continuing efforts to
re-center the business. The four pillars are;

1. Keep clients first~looking at each of our business decisions
to test how they enhance the relationships we enjoy with our
clients. Quraim is to enhance the complete experience for
all of our clients—from prospect to proposal to cantroct to
expansion to renewal.

2. Create a rewarding work experience—ensuring thot Hewitt is o
place where associates can do their best work. We are toking
action to enhance the work experience ond create some fun
in the workplace in ways thot lead to improved engagement
and retention of our people.

3. Grow with intention—both organically and through logicol
ocquisitions. We are investing in product enhancements
and odding complementeory services to both our Consulting
ond Qutsourcing offers based on emerging client needs.

In addition, we are introducing Hewitt to new markets and
expanding in others—specifically the middle market in North
America and high-growth markets in Asia-Pacific. We have
augmented our sales arganization to support these market
expansions and to be more proactive across the board.

4. Getlean—by reshaping our operating model and imple-
menting a continuous improvement mandote that is
improving efficiency and freeing up resources. Lean is the
new way of thinking and working at Hewitt that enables
us to fund the investments that will lead to new growth and
other value-creation initiatives, while still contributing to
maorgin expansion.

A solid foundation

We ore pleased with the early results of our re-centering
efforts. We are building a solid foundation for future growth,
the market demand is strong, and we have the experience

to continue to lead. The proof will be in the doing. and we are
picking up the pace on aMl fronts.

Berefits Outscurcing is the industry we invented by providing
excellent products and an exceptional client experience.




Maotthew Levin
Seniar Vice President—
Corporate Development
ond Strategy

Leadership

Now we are focusing on investing in enhancements to our
existing platforms, identifying o number of add-on services, and
expanding our target markets. Qur operations organization has
made continuous process improvement a key priority in their
ongoing focus an quality.

Consulting is an industry with significant growth potential, We
ore taking steps to increase our profitable growth along two
fronts. First, we are developing new solutions to capitolize on
market trends, such as the need to manage risk differently in the
retirement business, continued M&A activity, and the ongoing
race for talent. And second, we are accelerating our internationol
expansion in our fast-growing regions.

HR BPO is anindustry still in its formative stoges, and we are
adapting cur model bosed on our early experience as the market
leader. We spent much of the yeor stabilizing our existing
portfolio of controcts and refining our offer. Our new model
features arefined scope of services including the core offers

of benefits, workforce administration, and payroll that can be
augmented with o set of specialized services when they are o
good match with client needs on both customer service and
economic dimensions. We are pleosed with the performance of
our newer coniracts and plan to grow this business in g slower
end more profitable way going forward.

Across all our businesses, we are increasing progductivity end
improving cost effectiveness, while always putting service
quality first. We have streamlined our technology and real estate
infrastructures, leveraged our supplier relationships better,

and expanded our offshore operations. These ore just some of

Trocy Keogh Julie Gordon Jay Rising Russ Frodin JohinPark Perry Brandorff Steven Kyono Kristi Sovacool
Senior Vice President— President— President— Chairmon ond Chief Chief Finoncial President— SeniorVice President— Semaor Vice President—
Humaon Resources Clientand Market HR Quisourcing Executive Officer Officer Consulting Generol Counsei ond Globoi Business

Servicesond Information
Technology

Corparote Secretary

the actions that have contributed to margin expansion while
enabling us to serve our clients more efficiently.

Executive leadership

A mojor focus in 2007 was blending proven leaders from outside
Hewitt with the experienced senior executive team. With the
gppointments of Matt Levin as Senior Vice President of Corporate
Development and Strotegy, Tracy Keogh as Senior Vice President
of Human Resources, Jay Rising os President of HR Qutsourcing,
and Steve Kyono as General Counsel and Corporate Secretary,

we odded a fresh external perspective to the deep experience

of longstanding Hewitt leaders. We now have the right team in
placeto gothe distance.

Atthe heart of Hewitt

In the race for human capital, the wianers of tomorrow will

be those organizations that derive the greatest value from the
investments they make in their people. Helping our clients
reglize that value is why we are in business. It's at the heart of
what Hewitt has alwoys been about. And it will be what drives
the Hewitt of the future.

Russeil Fradin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
December 1, 2007




Keep clients first.

All the way back to Ted Hewitt and the founding of Hewitt Associates in 1940,
our number-one focus has been providing top-notch service to our clients. That’s
why the four pillars that define our strategic imperatives begin with Keep clients
first. We are in business to help our clients get the greatest possible value out of
their investment in people. In the early days, a client-first platform was mostly @
matter of having the right intention and follow-through. Today, it takes much
more—it requires leadership, vision, strategy, resources, consistent behaviors
and practices, and careful attention to every aspect of the client experience—all
of which can take different shapes from one business segment to another. In our
Benehts Outsourcing business, we're keeping clients first by re-engineering our
processes, improving our products and service delivery, and increasing resource
levels in some key areas. In our Consulting business, we're providing thought
leadership on the critical issues of managing human capital and managing risks
in the changing landscape for retirement and health care. In HR BPO, we're
narrowing our focus to a core set of services and geographies that fit our ability
to successfully execute and add value to our clients. And to work across all our
businesses, practices, and geographies, we have created a new Client and
Market Leadership organization whose purpose is to help ensure that we have
exceptionally satisfied clients. Our goal is to consistently deliver the right
solutions to meet their needs throughout our full array of services.
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Create a rewarding work experience.

Without committed and engaged associates, it would be impossible for us to
deliver our full capabilities. Associates are the heart and soul of Hewitt. They set
the tone for everything we do. They define expectations, fuel responsiveness, and
spearhead service. Our second pillar is about enabling our associates to do their
best work by Creating a rewarding work experience. Our culture is evolving to add a
performance orientation to our well-cultivated focus on relationships and
collaboration. In fiscal 2007, we accelerated that change through o new bonus
structure that more closely ties associate recognition to the results they create.
We have taken input from our global engagement survey and targeted focus
groups across the Company to define the key areas that will enhance the work
experience in ways that lead to improved engagement and retention of our
people. We are already in motion with a number of workplace initiatives to
enhance collaboration and improve productivity. We firmly believe that more
engaged associates will translate into even more satishied and loyal clients—

ond this, in turn, will drive increased shareholder value.







Grow with intention.

Our leadership team made it a high priority in fiscal 2007 to refine our overall
picture of our industry and the markets for our services. We gathered and
analyzed the data, and everything we learned pointed to the same conclusion:
We will continue to operate in a high-growth industry for the foreseeable future.
Not only do our clients need help delivering their programs in o cost-effective
manner and managing the financial aspects of their benefit plans; they also tell
us that they want Hewitt to continue to be proactive in bringing them the latest
thinking in human capital management. We plan to take full advantage of this
growth industry, and therefore our third pillar is Grow with intention. What’s the
significance of the phrase, “with intention”? It means we will grow in ways that
both make sense to our clients and allow us to meet our financial objectives. We
will grow organically and through acquisition; we will grow by expanding our
target markets, by developing complementary add-on services, and by
expanding geographically; and we will grow on the strength of new sales activity
as well as expanding relationships with existing clients. In 2007, our acquisition
of Reallife HR strengthened our mid-market capabilities by offering a more
flexible health and welfare benefits administration platform ideally suited for
employers with fewer than 15,000 enroliees. We can now bring an administrative
solution to our many satisfied Consulting clients in the mid-market. Our ultimate
goal is to grow in ways that allow Hewitt to provide insights and services to an
ever-expanding group of the world’s progressive companies.







Get lean.

Our fourth pillar is quite simply, Get lean. As an organization, we are striving for
operational effectiveness and continuous productivity improvement across

all parts of our business. After years of rapid expansion, some elements of our
operating model have grown complex and costly to maintain. We know that
building an efficient and scalable operation will allow us to best serve our clients,
free up dollars to reinvest in the business, and enable us to design and deliver
more competitive offers—all of this while still improving our margins. Leanis a
new way of operating at Hewitt, and we are taking a broad-based and systematic
approach. We are forming strategic partnerships with our suppliers to create cost
and quality leverage and to strategically source more non-core functions. In
2007, we announced plans to evaluate our global real estate footprint. We've
already taken action to reduce vacant and underutilized space. But we didn't
simply take away space—we reinvested in an enhanced work environment to
better match the type of space to the kind of work performed and create a work
environment where people can do their best work. We began an evaluation of
our technology infrastructure and systems with a goal to drive to more common
technology platforms. Qur core businesses are focused on driving continuous
improvement in client service delivery and back-office processing. We are
upgrading quality systems and improving the processes we use to implement our
services to new clients. We are also focused on creating the right balance of work
both onshore and offshore with systems, tools, and processes to make it all work
seamlessly for our clients. As an organization committed to service quality,
getting lean will never stop at Hewitt, because efficiency and scalability prove to
be great enablers of our other strategic imperatives—keeping clients first,
creating a rewarding work experience, and growing with intention.
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Hewitt at a glance

Hewitt Associates

We are one of the warld's foremast providers of humen resources oussourcing and
consulting services, helping compenies from virtuclly every industry und every region
of the world generate greater value from their human copital investments by working
togetherto address their people, workforce, and operational HR issues and challenges.
In fiscal 2007, our net revenues increased 5% to $2.9 billion. Adjusting for the decline in
third-party supplier revenues, the net favoreble effects of fareign currency translation,
and acquisitions, net revenues increased 4%.

We believe that few organizations provide the breadth and depth of human capital
solutions thot we developed through more than 65 years of experience in human
resources. Qur thought leadership and innovation, in addition to our ability to integrate
HR cutsourcing and consulting services to provide clients with total HR solutions that
deliver business results, are what help differentiote us in the merketplace.

Hewitt Service Offerings

Benefits

Qutsourcing

Benefits Outsourcing

Generating approximately 50% of our fiscal 2007 revenues, our Benefits Qutsourcing
business applies our HR expertise primarily through defined benefit, defined contri-
butian, and heolth and welfore administration services, as well as o host of additional
complementary services such as leave of absence administration, flexible spending, and
porticipent advocacy. Using technology and pracess transformation, our model replaces
the resource-intensive processes ance required to administer benefit plans with more
efficient, effective, and less costly solutions. The business is generally charocterized

by long-term contracts, annually recurring revenues, and high client retention rates. In
fiscal 2007, our Benefits Outsourcing revenues increased 1% to $1.48 billion. Adjusting
for the favarable effects of foreign currency translation, Benefits Qutsourcing revenues
were essentially flat.

Benehts Qutsourcing Net Revenues’
(dollars in mitlions)

31466 1LAUTS

2005 2006 2007
Number of clients: >300

HR Business Process Qutsourcing

Genergting approximately 20% of our fiscal 2007 revenues, our HR BPQ business
provides clients with lecding-proctice solutions to manage employee data and edmin-
ister benefits, payroll, and other human resources processes. We record and monage
transactions across these core processes in addition to a variety of talent and workfarce
manugement solutions. In fiscal 2007, our HR BPO revenues increased 4% to

$539.4 million. Adjusting for the decline in third-party supplier revenues and the
favorable effects of foreign currency translation, HR BPO revenues increased 15%.

HR BPO Net Revenues

(dollars in milligns)

2005 2006 2007
Number of clients: > 30

Consulting

Generating approximately 30% of our fiscal 2007 revenues, our Consulting business
works with companies around the world to design, develop, implement, communicate,
and provide financial/actucrial analysis for their people-related business strotegies.
We design programs for retirement and health care benefits, compensation and totol
rewards, talent management, and change management that will help clients lower costs
while increasing their obility to meet business objectives. [n fiscal 2007, our Consulting
revenues increased 12% to $945.9 million. Adjusting for the favorable effects of foreign
currency translation and the effects of acquisitions, Consulting revenues increased 7%.

“The Compony begon reporting Benefits Qutsourcing and HR BPO as separate segments in fiscal 2007, As

such, comparable data for fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2004 is nat avoilable.
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Consulting Net Revenues
{dotlars in millions)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Number of clients: »>3,000




Financial highlights

Fiscat Year Ended September 30,

Dollars in millions 2007 2006° 2005 2004 2003
Net Revenues $ 2,921 $ 2,789 $ 2,832 $ 2,200 $ 1,981
Operating (Loss) Income $ (143) $  (64) $ 234 $ 223 $ 178
Core Operating (Loss) Income™ N/A $  {55) $ 252 $ 240 $ 217
Net (Loss) Income $ (175) § {116) $ 135 $ 123 $ 94
Core(Loss) Income™ N/A ¢ {110) $ 145 $ 133 $ 118
Diluted {Loss) Earnings Per Share $ (1.62) $ (1.08) $ 1.19 $ 1.25 $ 0097
Core Diluted (Loss) Earnings Per Share™ N/A $ (1.01) $ 1.28 $ 1.33 $ 1.19
Totol Assets $ 2,756 $ 2,768 $ 2,657 $ 1,808 $ 1,604
Long-Term Portion of Debt and Capital Lease Obligations $ 233 $ 255 $ 287 $ 201 $ 219
Market Price of Stock:™" High Low _ High Low

First fiscal quarter
Second fiscal quarter
Third fiscal quarter
Fourth fiscal quarter

$26.03 $23.54
$30.77 $25.40
$32.20 $28.42
$35.05 $29.40

$28.15 $24.50
$29.75 $24.76
$30.23 $20.60
$24.30 $19.01

‘Fiscal 2007 results include $409 million of pretax charges releted to unusual items: fiscal 2006 results include $271 million of pretax chorges primarily reloted to the
HR BPC business.

“The results of Exult, Inc. are included in the Company’s results from the acquisition date of October 1, 2004.

*“Core operating income, core net income. and core diluted earnings per share are non-GAAP (“GAAP™ os defined by occounting principles generally accepted in the United
States) financial meosures. The Company believed this measure provided o betier understanding of its underlying opesating performance. Results on a core basis exclude
charges related to the amortizotion of the one-time, initiol public offering-related grant of restricted stock to employees (339 million, $17 million, $17 million, and

$9 million in fiscal 2003 through 2006, respectively).

““Hewitt Associntes. [nc. campleted its initial public offering on fune 27, 2002. The Company’s Class A common stack is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbo! "HEW." As of October 31, 2007, the Company hod 806 stockhalders of record of its Class A common stock. The Company hos not paid cosh dividends on its common
stock. The Company's Board of Directors reevaluates this palicy periodically. Any determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors
ond wifl be dependent upon the Company’s inanciol conditian, results of operations, capital requirements, terms of financing arrangements, and such other factors as the
Board of Directors deems relevant.

Net Revenues

{doltars in millions)

$2.789

Net (Loss) [ncome and

Core (Loss) [ncome
(dallars in millians)

@ Nel (Loss) Income O Core (Loss) Income

$145

Operating Cesh Flow

and Free Cosh Fiow
(dollars in millions)

@ Jpercting Cosh Flow O Free Cosh Flow

{excludes

copital expenditures)

)

sna zdlsr s 5341
- 3328 LEadg
§273
$234
Y $206
- 140
THELItoN
($175)

2003 2004 2005 0c7 2003 200 2006
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following information should be read in conjunction with our consoli-
dated financial statements and related notes, included elfsewhere in this
Annugl Repart. In addition to historical information, this discussion and
analysis may contain forward-looking statements that involve risks,
uncertainties and assumptions, which could cause actual results to differ
materiglly from management's expectotions. Please see additional risks
and uncertainties described below, in “Disclosure Reqarding forward-
Looking Statements” which appears later in this section and in the Com-
pany's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
2007 inltem 1A."Risk Factors.”

We use the terms “Hewitt,” “the Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” to refer te
the business of Hewitt Associates, Inc. and its subsidiaries, Al references
to years, unless atherwise noted, refer to our fiscal years, which end on
September 30. For example, a reference to “2007 "or “fiscal 2007 " means
the twelve-month period that ends September 30, 2007. References ta
and adjustments for “foreign currency translation” are made within our
discussion of results so that the financial results can be viewed without
the impact of fluctuating foreign currency exchange rates used in report-
ing resufts in one currency (U.S. Dollar) and helps facilitate a comparative
view of business results. Financial results described within this section,
except for share and per share information, are stated in thousands of U.S.
Dollars unless otherwise noted. Certain prior-period amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the current-year presentation.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains forward-looking statements relating to our operations
that are based on our current expectotions, estimates and projections,
Words such as “anticipates,” “belfeves,” “continues,” “estimates,” “expects,”
“goal" “intends,” “may,” "opportunity,” “plans,” “potential,” “prajects,” “fore-
casts,” “should,” “will” and similar expressions are intended to identify
such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of
future performance and involve risks, uncertainties ond assumptions that
are difficult to predict. Forward-looking statements are based upon
assumptions as to future events that may not prove to be accurate. Actual
outcomes and results may differ materially from what is expressed or fore-
casted in these forward-looking statements. Actual results may differ from
the forward-looking statements for many reasons, including those dis-
cussed in [tem 1A. "Risk Factors” in the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2007, We undertake no obli-
gation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or for any other reason.

Overview
Fiscal 2007 was a year of transition. During the year, we began
to focus on re-centering the business in order to capitolize on the
growth and margin opportunities that exist in our more estoblished
Benefits Qutsourcing and Consulting businesses. We also introduced
four key strategic priarities that will help us achieve our objectives.
These priorities have been identified as fundamental to our future
success and ongoing health of our business. Following is o brief
discussion of these four priorities and the progress made during
the year against these priorities.
+ Keep Clients First. Qur intense focus on the needs of our clients hos
earned us the strong reputation that we enjoy in the marketploce,
and will be key to our future growth and success. This includes
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understanding what creates the most value for our clients and
also meeting the expectotions of our clients. Reinvesting in qual-
ity by re-engineering our processes, improving our product serv-
ice delivery ond increasing our resourcing levels in some key
areas will be underlying themes in our go-forward strotegies. [n
addition, our recently created Client and Market Leadership
organization is dedicated to ensuring that we remain focused on
driving the right soluticns for our clients across the full array of
our service offerings.

Create o Rewarding Work Experience. Engoged employees are criti-
cal to our success. We are focused on revitalizing our culture and
creating a rewarding work environment for our associates argund
the world. During the year we appointed ¢ new Senior Vice Presi-
dent of Humon Resources, who has begun to partner with our other
senior leaders to create a truly high-perfarmance organization.
Grow With Intention. We believe Benefits Qutsourcing end Con-
sulting hold opportunities for growth for the foreseeable future.
We continue to pursue new growth strategies, particularly in
leveraging our Benefits Outsourcing and Consulting businesses
as we focus on re-centering the business. Additionally, increased
discipline is being exercised in allocating the use of our capital
when evaluating these growth opportunities. We are also seeking
to evolve and expand our offers by organic growth and through
acquisitions. In keeping with this priority, we announced during
the fiscal fourth quorter the acquisition of Reallife HR. RealLife
HR oversees health and welfare benefits for 35 companies, each
of which has fewer than 15,000 employees and retirees. We
believe the middle market represents a large growth opportunity
for us and through this acquisition we will be more able to more
effectively serve middle market companies.

« Get Lean. Our objectives are 10 reshape cur operating madel
to improve efficiency and create the fuel to invest in our future
growth. Maintaining aggressive focus on our cost structure will
continue to be o top priority. During the year we implemented
several productivity initiatives ocross our business. In conjunc-
tion with an angeoing review of our real estate portfolic, we also
announced in the third quarter our intention to consolidate focil-
ities, and in some cases, exit certain properties. We recorded o
pre-tax charge of $29 million in the fourth quarter reloted to this
real estate restructuring.

There were a number of specific items that negatively impacted
results in fiscal 2007, including:

+ Non-cash pre-tax charges of $329 million related to impoirment
of goodwili, intangible assets and contract loss provisions;

+ A pre-tax severance charge of $32 million resulting from ongoing
productivity initiatives across the business;

» A pre-tax charge of $29 million related to the review of our real
estate portfolio, including $18 million of expenses for recognition
of the fair value of lease vacancy obligations and lease termina-
tion charges related to exit of certain locations, and $11 million
for related acceleration of depreciation of leasehold improve-
ments and equipment and other charges;

« A pre-tax charge of $15 million reloted to the enticipated restruc-
turing of an HR BPQO contract; and

- A pre-tox charge of $5 million resulting from the second-guorter
resolution of a legal dispute with a vendor.



Fiscal 2007 also included a pre-tax non-operating gain of $6 million
reloted to the sale of an investment.

The non-cash pre-tox charges of $329 million reloted to impair-
ment of goodwill, intangible ossets and contract loss provisions
were 0s follows:

+ During the fourth quarter, we performed our annual impairment
review of goodwill. This review resulted in the impairmeni of
$280 million of goodwill in the HR BPO segment due to reduced
growth expectations for the overall business, partially due to o
revised strategy. The reduced growth expectotions were driven
by o reduction in the likely number of future engagements and
reduced contract value of each engagement, as we focus on iden-
tifying potential customers seeking o more standardized set of
platforms and services. The $280 million non-cash charge is
reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of opera-
tions within the goodwill and asset impairment caption.

- Anon-cash charge of $39 million for the impairment of intangible
assets and capitolized softwore primarily resulted from lower
than expected utilization of certain acquired software assets, and
is reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations within the goodwill and asset impairment coption.

- Loss provisions of $10 million reflecting our revised profitability
expectations for certain European Benefits Outsourcing con-
trocts. During the fourth quarter, we undertook an in-depth review
of profitability of contracts reloted to the Evropean Benefits Out-
sourcing business. This review established that some of the exist-
ing multi-year contracts are no longer expected to nchieve the
levels of profitability previously anticipated and resulted in the
need for additional loss provisions. Of this charge, $7 million is
reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of opera-
tions as o component of compensation and related expenses and
$3 million within goodwill and asset impairment.

Hewitt Associates, [nc.

Finally, as discussed in the second quarter, we made changes to our
reportable segments and the costs that are delivered to them s we
continue to strive for increased transparency into our results. The
changes include:

- The realignment of cost structures and allocation of costs.
Improved data and analytical capabilities have provided us with
increased visibility into shared service costs that were previously
not ottributable to specific business segment activity. As a resuft,
we have been able to quantify and distribute previously unallo-
cated shared service costs to the appropriate business segment.
These costs include charges associoted with management,
finance, general counset and corporate relations as well as insur-
ance and other taxes. Further, we are now allocating costs based
on usage and consumption factors. The realignment has impacted
the costs reported within each segment and the level of unallo-
cated shared service costs. These enhancements will provide
greater visibility to controllable costs, further enhancing our abil-
ity to analyze the profitability of each business segment.
Reporting of Benefits Qutsourcing and HR BPO. The HR BPO busi-
ness has become an increosingly important focus for manage-
ment. Management has realigned organizationol resourcesina
way that focuses specific resources to the HR BPO ond Benefits
Outsourcing businesses. In addition, improved data and analyti-
cal tools have enhenced our ability to identify consumption
drivers between each distinct business segment and provide
additional insight into business profitability. As o result of these
changes, effective the second quarter of this fiscal year, we began
reporting Qutsourcing as two business segments: Benefits
Qutsourcing and HR BPO.

For further discussion of how these items impacted our results
across the Company, please see our discussion of Consolidated and
Segment results below.

Consolidated Results
The following table sets forth our historical results of operations.

Year Ended September 30, % of Net Revenues

In thousands 2007 2006 % Change 2007 2006
Revenues: Revenues before reimbursements (net revenues)” $2,921,076 $2,788,722 4.7%
Reimbursements 69,250 68,439 1.2%
Total revenues 2,990,326 2,857,161 4.7%

Operating expenses: Compensation ond related expenses 1,906,158 1,799,743 5.9% 65.3% 64.5%

Goodwill and asset impairment 326,615 255,873 27.6% 11.2% 9.2%

Reimbursable expenses 69,250 68,439 1.2% 2.4% 2.5%

Other operating expenses 636,698 642,803 (0.9)% 21.8% 23.1%

Selling, general and administrative expenses 194,572 154,564 25.9% 6.6% 5.5%

Total operating expenses 3,133,293 2,921,422 7.3% 107.3% 104.8%

Operating loss (142,967)  (64,261) (122.5)% (4.9)% (2.3)%

Other income (expense), net 18,249 4,691 289.0% 0.6% 0.2%

Loss before income taxes (124,718) (59,570) (109.4)% (4.3)% (2.1)%

Provision for income taxes 50,362 56,368 (10.7)% 1.7% 2.1%

Net loss $ (175,080) % (115938) (51.0)% (6.0)% {4.2)%

BNet revenues include $66,267 ond $113,399 of third-party supplier revenues for the yeor ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The third-party supplier arrange-
ments are generally marginally profitable. The reloted third-party supplier expenses are included in operating expenses.

15



Net Revenues

The increase in net revenues was primarily driven by revenue growth
in the Consulting segment. Revenue strength was attributed to an
incregsed demand in Consulting for Retirement and Financial Mon-
agement and Talent and Organizationa! Consulting services. HR BPQ
also contributed to the revenue growth due to an increase in the num-
ber of clients who went live with contract services aver the lost twelve
months and growth in revenue from existing clients including an
increase in project work. Net revenues, excluding third-party supplier
revenues and the favorable effects of foreign currency translation
and acquisitions of epproximately $48.3 million and $10.3 million,
respectively, increased 4.4% as compared to the prior-year. Seg-
ment results are discussed in greater detail later in this section.

Compensation and Related Expenses

The increase in expense gver the prior year includes $60.4 million of
increosed performance-based compensation and $45.4 million of
higher salaries and wages partially offset by $12.7 million of lower
share-bosed compensation related to lower IPO restricted stock
award expense and an increase to the forfeiture rate. The increase in
performance-bosed compensation reflects an overall increase in the
expected payout compared to the prior year due to the improvement
in underlying performance resulis in fiscal 2007. The increase in
salaries and wages is primarily attributable to increases in compen-
sation, higher labor costs related to servicing live clients and an
increase in severonce expense. Partiolly offsetting the increase
in solaries ond woges is lower controctor expense due to the
Company's continued efforts to optimize resources,

Goodwill and Asset Impairment

During the year ended September 30, 2007, the Company evaluated
certain intangible ossets related to the HR BPO and Benefits Qut-
sourcing segments for impairment. This review resulted in non-cash
impairment charges of $327 million including $280 million of good-
will impairment and $47 million of asset impairment, which
includes capitalized software and core technology of $33 million,
customer relationships of $6 million and $8 million of anticipated
losses on certain contracts.

Other Operating Expenses

The decreose in other operating expense is due to o reduction in
third-party supplier costs of $47.8 million, offset by $29.3 miilicn of
pre-tax real estate-related charges primorily due to recognition of
the fair volue of lease vacancy obligations and lease termination
charges related to exit of certain locations, and related acceleration
of depreciation of leasehold improvements and equipment and other
charges. Also offsetting the decrease is an increase in client service
delivery charges, net of deferrals, of $7.5 million primarily refated to
the increased number of HR BPO clients who are live with angoing
services.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expense (SG&A)

The increase in SG&A expense is primarily due to o $15 millign
charge associated with the anticipated restructuring of one of our
HR BPO contracts and a $5 millian charge, recorded within Benefits
Qutsourcing, associated with the resolution of a legal dispute with o
vendor. Also contributing to the increase is higher omartization of
intangible assets resulting from the shortening of the remaining use-
ful life of o customer relationship and higher consulting charges
related to the Company's assessment of its longer-term strategy.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Other income increased by $14 million over the prior year due to
higher interest income derived from significantly higher average
investment balances and rising interest rates yielding higher
returns. In addition, in fiscal 2007, we sold an investment that was
accounted for using the cost basis method of accounting and recog-
nized a gain of $6 million. In fiscal 2006, we recognized o §7 miltion
gain in connection with o contribution of our German Retirement
and Financial Management business in exchange for an increased
investment in @ German actuarial business.

Income Tax Provision

Our consolidated effective income tax rate was 40.4% for the year
ended September 30, 2007, as compared to 94.6% for the compara-
ble priar-year pericd. We identify items which are not normal and
recurring in nature and treat these os discrete events. The tax effect
of discrete items is booked entirely in the period in which the dis-
crete event occurs. Additionally, tax legistation and tox examina-
tions in the jurisdictions in which we do business may change our
effective tax rate in future periods. While such changes cannot be
predicted, if they occur, the impuact an our tax assets, obligations
and liquidity will need to be measured and recognized in the finan-
cial statements.

In fiscal 2007, @ number of significant items including a non-
deductible goodwill impairment charge, as well as a reduction of
deferred tax assets related to certain foreign entities, impacted the
current year rate.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standords Board (“FASB”)
issued Interpretation No. 48 ("FIN 487}, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Toxes. FIN 48 prescribes detailed guidance for the financiol
statement recognition, measurement and disclosure of uncertain tax
positions recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in
accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes. Tox positions must meet a more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold at the effective dote to be recognized upon the adoption of
FIN 48 and in subsequent periods, FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006 (our fiscal year 2008) and
the provisions of FIN 48 will be applied to all tax positions under
Statement No. 109 upon initial adoption. The cumulative effect of
applying the provisions of this interpretation will be reported as an
adjustment to the apening balance of retained earnings for that
fiscal year. The Company is currently evalusting the potential
impact of FIN 48 on its consolidated financial stotements.




Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2006 and 2005

Hewitt Associates, Inc.

Year Ended September 30, % of Net Revenues
Inthousands 2006 2005 % Change 2006 2005
Revenues:
Revenues before reimbursements {net revenues}® $2,788,722 $2,831,507 {1.5)%
Reimbursements 68,439 58,143 17.7%
Total revenues 2,857,161 2.889,650 (1.1)%
Operating expenses:
Compensation and related expenses, including
initial public offering restricted stock awards 1,799,743 1,646,304 9.3% 64.5% 58.1%
Goodwill and asset impairment 255,873 9,615 2.561.2% 9.2% 0.3%
Reimbursable expenses 68,439 58,143 17.7% 2.5% 2.1%
Other operating expenses 642,803 781,579 (17.8)% 23.1% 27.6%
Selling, general and odministrative expenses 154,564 160,175 (3.5)% 5.5% 5.7%
Total operating expenses 2,921,422 2,655,816 10.0% 104.8% 93.8%
Operating (loss) income (64.261) 233,834 (127.5)% (2.3)% 8.3%
Other income (expense), net 4,691 (13,319) 135.2% 0.2% (0.5)%
{Loss) income before income taxes (59,570) 220,515 (127.0)% (2.1)% 7.8%
Provision for income taxes 56,368 85,783 (34.3)% 2.1% 3.0%
Net (loss) income % (115.938) $ 134,732 (186.1)% {4.2)% 4.8%

“Net revenues include $113,399 and $244,006 of third-party supplier revenues for the year ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The third-party supplier
arrangements are generally marginally prefitable. The related third-party supplier expenses are included in other operating expenses,

Net Revenues

The decrease in net revenues was primarily driven by a significant
decline in third-party supplier revenues resulting from the termina-
tion of an HR BPO client contract in the prior year. Excluding third-
party supplier revenue, direct revenue grew 3.4%. This increase is
primarily due to Consulting growth in both the Tolent and Organiza-
tion Consulting services in North America as well as the Asia Pacific
Regions ond Benefits Consulting particularly in Europe. Direct rev-
enues also improved as a result of increased services to existing
clients as well as incrensed one-time project work in Benefits Out-
sourcing. Net revenues, excluding third-party supplier revenues and
ofter adjusting for foreign currency translation losses of approxi-
mately $5 million and the net effects of acquisitions and disposi-
tions of approximately $8 million, increosed 3.3% as compared to
the prior-year period.

Compensation and Related Expenses

The increase over prior year primarily relates to $79 million of
higher performance-based compensation and related incentives
than in the prior year, $48 million of higher wages due to headcount
and cost of living increases, $31 million incremental stock-based
compensation expense, including expense related to the fiscal 2006
grants of restricted stock and the expensing of stock options under
Statement of Financial Standords No. 123(R) (“SFAS 123(R)"}, as
well as $11 million of expense related to anticipated losses on certain
HR BPO contracts. These increases were partially offset by higher
levels of deferred contract costs related to the HR BPO segment in
the current year.

In connection with our initial public offering on June 27, 2002, we
granted approximately 5.8 million shares of Class A restricted stock
and restricted stock units to our employees. Compensation and
related poyroll tax expenses of approximotely $110 million were
recorded as initiel public offering restricted stock eward expense
from June 27, 2002 through September 30, 2006. The grants fully
vested on June 27, 2006.

Goodwill and Asset Impairment

During the year the Company recognized $256 miltion of impair-
ment charges related to HR BPO. The non-cash charges consisted of
$172 million of goodwill impairment, $62 million of asset impair-
ment for certain existing contracts due to higher than expected costs
to be incurred over the life of the contracts, $13 million of asset
impairment resulting from the termination of a client contract and
$9 million of fong-lived asset impairment primarily due to lower
than expected utilization of an acquired asset.

Other Operating Expenses

The decrease in other operating expenses is primarily driven by a
significant decrease in the third-party supplier costs due to a termi-
nated client contract in the prior year.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense (SG&A)

As o percentage of net revenues, SG&A expenses were consistent
period gver period.
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Other Income (Expense), Net

Infiscal 2006, we recognized a goin of $7 million in connection with
a contribution of our German retirement ond financial management
business in exchange for an increased investment in o German actu-
arial business. This gain, as well as higher interest income, due to
increased operating cash flows, accounted for the mojority of the
year-over-year increase.

Income Tax Provision

Our consolidated effective income tax rate was 94.6% for the year
ended September 30, 2006, as compared to 38.9% for the compara-
ble prior-year period. We identify items which are not normal and
recurring in nature and treat these as discrete events. The tox effect
of discrete items is booked entirely in the period in which the dis-
crete event occurs. Additionally, tox legislation and tax examina-
tions in the jurisdictions in which we do business may change our
effective tax rate in future periods. While such changes cannot be
predicted, if they occur, the impact on our tax assets, obligations

and liquidity will need to be measured and recognized in the finan-
cial statements.

In fiscal 2006, o number of significant items including a non-
deductible goodwill impairment charge, the net impoct of reserve
activity as well as a reduction of deferred tox assets related to cer-
tain foreign entities impaocted the current year rate. In addition, we
provided $3 million of additional deferred tox assets associoted
with acquisitions. This deferred tax asset wos recorded as a reduc-
tion to goodwill.

Segment Results

The following table sets forth unaudited historical segment results
for the periods presented. Prior year resuits have been recast to
reflect new allocation methodalogies and distribution of additianal
shared service costs adopted in the second quarter of fiscal year
2007. In addition, beginning with the second quarter, the Company
began reporting three segments: Benefits Outsourcing, HR BPO ond
Consulting.

Year Ended September 30,

In thausands 2007 2006 % Change
Benefits Outsourcing
Segment revenues before reimbursements $1,475,332 $1,465,710 0.7%
Segment income 306,199 321,735 {(4.8)%
Segment income as a percentage of segment revenues 20.8% 22.0%
HRBPO
Segment revenues before reimbursements'™ $ 539,407 $ 517.502 4.2%
Segment loss (495,219) (423,407) {17.0)%
Segment Joss as a percentage of segment revenues (91.8)% (81.8)%
Consulting
Segment revenues before reimbursements $ 945,905 $ 842,616 12.3%
Segment incorme 147,261 137,028 7.5%
Segment income as a percentage of segment revenues 15.6% 16.3%
Total Compony
Segment revenues before reimbursements® $2,960,644 $2.825.828 4.8%
Intersegment revenues (39,568) (37.106) 6.6%
Revenues before reimbursements (net revenues) 2,921,076 2,788,722 4.7%
Reimbursements 69,250 68,439 1.2%
Totaol revenues $2,990,326 $2.857.161 4.7%
Segment (loss) income $ (41,759) $ 35356 (218.1)%
Charges not recorded at the segment level:
Initial public offering restricted stock awards - 9,397 (100.0)%
Unallocated shared service costs 101,208 90,220 12.2%
QOperating loss S (142,967) $ (64,261) (122.5)%

“HR BPO net revenues include $66,267 and $113,399 of third-party supplier revenues for the year ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The third-party supplier

arrangements are generally morginolly profitable. The related third-party supplier expenses are included in ather operating expenses.
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Benefits Outsourcing

Benefits Qutsourcing net revenue, adjusting for the impact of foreign
currency translation of $7.6 million, essentially was unchanged as
compared to the yeor ended September 30, 2006. An increase in
services to new and existing clients, organic growth of existing
clients and an increase in project work, was offset by the impact of
lost clients and longer implementation cycles required for some of
the Company’s large, complex clients.

Benefits operating income decreased 4.8% os compared o the
prior year. The current year reflects charges of $22 million related to
the real estate restructurings, $13 million related to severance
charges, $10 million of additional loss reserves for anticipated
losses on certain European contracts and $5 millian resulting from
the resolution of a legol dispute with a vendor. Asset impairment
charges of $7.6 million primarily related to the write-off of customer
relationship intangibles and capitalized software, os well os
increased client service delivery expense, olso contributed to the
decreose in segment income. Partiolly offsetting the decrease were
efficiencies driven by global sourcing and other cost management
efforts.

HR BPO

HR BPO net revenue, excluding third-party revenue and adjusting for
the impact of foreign currency translation of $7.8 million, increased
15.2% during the year ended September 30, 2007 as compared to
the prior-year period. The increase is primarily related to an increase
in the number of clients who went live with contract services over the
last twelve months and growth in revenue from existing clients
including an increase in project work.

HR BPQ operating loss increased 17% as compared to the prior
year. The current-year results reflect charges of $280 million for
goodwill impairment and $30 miliion for intangible asset impair-
ment relating to the impairment of capitalized software, core
technology intangible and customer relationship intangibles. The
current year also reflects charges of §5 million related to the real
estate restructurings, $15 million associated with the anticipoted
restructuring of a client contract and an increase in severance
charges of $11 million. The prior-year results reflected charges of
$172 million for goodwill impairment, $73 million for anticipoted
losses on certain contracts, $10 million net asset impairment as the
result of the termination of a client in the first quarter of fiscal 2006
and $9 miltion for impairment of long-lived assets. Excluding these
fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 charges, the segment loss improved
primarily due to the stobilization of the existing client base, as well
as overoll cost management efforts, offsetin part by the impact of
new contract implementations and increased intangible asset
amortization.

Hewitt Associates, Ing.

Consulting

Consulting net revenues, adjusting for the favorable effects of
foreign currency transiation of $32.8 million and acquisitions of
approximately $9.4 million, increased 7.2%. The majority of this
growth resulted from increased demond in Morth Americo ond
Europe for Retirement and Financial Manogement consulting, in par-
ticular, driven by the new funding legislation in the U.S. and upcom-
ing pension accounting changes. Also contributing to the revenue
growth is increased demand for Tatent ond Grganizational Consult-
ing services, particuiarly in the Asia-Pacific region.

Segment income increased 7.5% 0s compared to the same
prior-yeor period due to revenue growth, partially offset by higher
compensation expense driven by increased woges and performance-
bosed incentives.

Unallocated Shared Service Costs

Unallocoted shared service costs are global expenses that are
incurred on behalf of the entire Company and are not specificto o
business segment. These costs include finance, legal, management
and corporate relations and other related costs. Prior to the second
guarter, unallocated shared service costs also included various costs
specific to individuo! business segments. During the second quarter,
the Company performed a detailed review of shared service costs
and how they are consumed. The review identified shared service
costs that could be ottributed to o business segment either directly,
by embedding the cost in the business segment or through assign-
ment of costs bosed upon usage. Priar-period results were adjusted
to reflect this change.

Unallocated cost increased 12.2% primarily due to increcsed pro-
fessional services reloted to the Company's strategic initiatives,
increased performance-based compensation expense, offset by
productivity savings resulting from restructuring activities.

Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2006 and 2005
The following table sets forth unoudited historical segment results
for the periods presented. Prior-year results have been recast to
reflect new atlocation methodologies and distribution of additional
shared service costs adopted in the second quarter of fiscal 2007.
The Company has recast the fiscal 2006 results for comparative
purposes; however, fiscal 2005 segment results have not been
recast as it was not practical to do s0. As a result, the fiscal 2005
segment results do not reflect the new allocation methodologies
ossociated with shared service costs nor the distribution of certain
unallocated shared service costs into segment results odopted in the
second quarter of fiscal 2007 and are not comparable tao fiscal 2006.
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Year Ended September 30,

In thousands 2006 2005 % Change

Benefits Outsourcing

Segment revenues before reimbursements $1,465,710 $1,418,414 3.3%

Segment income 321,735 293,546 9.6%

Segment income as o percentage of segment revenues 22.0% 20.7%

HRBPO

Segment revenues before reimbursements™ $ 517,502 $ 632,230 (18.1)%

Segment loss (423,407) (116,542) 263.3%

Segment loss os o percentoge of segment revenues (81.8)% (18.4)%

Consulting

Segment revenues before reimbursements $ 842,616 $ 802,810 5.0%

Segment income 137,028 196,388 {30.2)%

Segment income as a percentage of segment revenues 16.3% 24.5%

Total Company

Segment revenues before reimbursements® $2,825,828 $2,853,454 (1.0)%

Intersegment revenues (37,106} (21,947) 69.1%

Revenues before reimbursements (net revenues) 2,788,722 2,831,507 (1.5)%

Reimbursements 68,439 58,143 17.7%

Totol revenues $2,857.161 $2.889,650 (1.1)%

Segment incame $ 35,356 $ 373,392 {90.5)%

Charges not recorded ot the segment level:

Initial public offering restricted stock awards 9,397 17,355 (45.9)%
Unallocated shared service costs 90,220 122,203 (26.2)%

Operating (loss) income $ (64,261) $ 233,834 (127.5)%

YHR BPO net revenues include $113,399 and $244,006 of third-party supplier revenues for the year ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The third-party supplier
arrangements are generally marginally profitable. The reloted third-party supplier expenses are included in other operating expenses.

Benefits Outsourcing

Benefits Outsourcing net revenue, adjusting for the unfavorable
impact of foreign currency translation of $2 million and the effects of
acquisitions of approximately $11 million, increased 2.7% during
the year ended September 30, 2006 as compared to the prior yeor.
The growth in revenue was primarily due to an increase in services to
new and existing clients and an increase in project work.

Fiscal 2006 operating income as o percentage of Benefits Qut-
sourcing net revenues increased 1.3% as compared to the prior year
primarily due to revenue growth, partiolly offset by increases in com-
pensation and refated costs associated with higher performance-
bosed compensation ond releted incentives of $20 million and
share-based compensation of $7 million related to the fiscal 2006
grants of restricted stock owards and the expensing of stock options
under SFAS 123(R). as well as $6.1 million of severance expense.

HRBPO

HR BPO net revenue, excluding third-party revenue and adjusting for
the impact of foreign currency translation of $2 million increased
3.4% during the year ended September 30, 2006 as compared to
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the prior year. The growth in revenue was primarily due to contracts
that went live within the twelve-month period, partially offset by o
decrease inrevenue related to the termination of o client cantract in
the prior year.

Fiscal 2006 operating loss as a percentoge of HR BPO net rev-
enues increased os a result of the non-cash charges of $172 million
for goodwill impairment, $73 millian for anticipated losses an cer-
tain contracts, $10 million net asset impairment as the result of the
termination of a client in the first quarter of fiscal 2006 and $9 mil-
Jion for impairment of long-lived assets. Fiscal 2006 also included
higher performance-bosed compensation and reloted incentives of
$19 million and share-based compensation expense of $7 million
reloted to the fiscal 2006 grants of restricted stock awards and the
expensing of stock options under SFAS 123(R). Fiscol 2006 also
reflected cost savings from a significant reduction in marginally
profitable third-party supplier revenue and reloted expenses. In
addition, the year-over-year comparison was favorably impacted by
a $10 million customer relationship intangible asset impairment
recorded in the prior year.



Consulting

Consulting net revenues increased by 5.0% during the year ended
Septemnber 30, 2006 as compared to the prior year. Adjusting for
foreign currency translation losses of approximately $5 million and
the net effects of acquisitions and dispositions of approximately
$3 million, Consulting net revenues increased 6.0%. The majority of the
increase was driven by increased demand for Benefits Consulting
due to higher actuarial consulting and pension administration serv-
ices as well as Talent and Organization Consulting services, particu-
larly compensation consulting, corporate restructuring and change
services. Communication consulting services also grew due to
increased support for the implementation and ongoing management
of outsourcing programs, as well as increased client demand for
communications support of their employee benefit plans.

Fiscal 2006 segment income as a percentsge of Consulting net
revenues decreased due to higher compensation resulting primarily
from $39 million of higher performonce-based compensation and
related incentives in the current year as well as $17 million of incre-
mental stock-based compensation this year related to the fiscal
2006 grants of restricted stock awards and the expensing of stock
options under SFAS 123(R). These items were partially offset by
higher revenutes in fiscal 2006.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Conforming with accounting principles generolly occepted in the
United States of America requires us to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported omounts and disclosures in the consoli-
dated financiol statements ond this Annual Report. The process of
determining significant estimates is fact specific and tokes into
account factors such as historical experience, known facts, current
and expected economic conditions and, in some cases, actuarial
techniques. We periodically reevaluate these significant factors end
make adjustments when facts and circumstances change; however,
actual results may differ from estimates. Certain of our occounting
policies require higher degrees of judgment than others in their
application. These include certain aspects of accounting for revenue
recognition and client contract loss reserves, deferred controct costs
and revenues, performance-based compensation, accounts receiv-
able and unbilled work in process, goodwill and other intangible
assets, retirement plans and income taxes.

Revenue Recognition
Revenues include fees generoted from Qutsourcing controcts and
from Consulting services provided to our clients. Outsourcing con-
tract terms typically range from three to five years for Benefits con-
tracts and seven to ten years for HR BPO contracts, while Consulting
orrangements are generally of a short-term nature.

in connection with the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF") Issue
No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangemnents with Multiple Deliverables, we have
contracts with multiple elements primarily in our Benefits Outsourc-
ing and HR BPO segments. Multiple-element arrongements are
ossessed to determine whether they can be separated into more than
one unit of accounting. EITF Issue 00-21 establishes the following
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criteria, all of which must be met, in order for a deliverable to qualify
as a separate unit of accounting:
« The delivered items have value to the client on a stand-alone basis
» There is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the
undelivered items
- If the arrangement includes a general right of return relative to
the delivered items, delivery or performance of the undelivered
items is considered probable and substentially in the control of
the Company.
If these criteria ore not met, deliverables included in an arrangement
are accounted for s o single unit of accounting and revenue is
deferred until the period in which the final deliverable is provided or
a predominant service level has been attained. If there is objective
and relioble evidence of fair value for all units of accounting in an
arrangement, the arrangement consideration is allocated to the sep-
arote units of accounting based on each unit’s relative fair value.
Revenue is then recognized using o proportional performance
method such as recognizing revenue based on transoctional services
delivered or on o straight-line basis (os edjusted primarily for
volume changes), os appropriate.

Our clients typically pay for Consulting services either on a time-
and-material or on o fixed-fee basis. On fixed-fee engagements,
revenues are recognized either as services are provided using a pro-
portional performance method, which utilizes estimates of overall
profitability and stages of project completion, or at the completion
of the project, based on the facts and circumstances of the client
arrongement.

Contract osses on Qutsourcing or Consulting arrangements are
recognized in the period in which the loss becomes probable and the
amount of the loss is reasanably estimable. Contract losses are
determined to be the amount by which the estimated direct costs,
including any remaining deferred contract costs, exceed the esti-
mated total revenues thot wilf be generated by the contract. When o
loss is identified, it is first recorded as an impairment of deferred
controct costs related to the specific contract, if applicabte, with the
remoining amaunt recorded as a loss reserve. Estimates are moni-
tored during the term of the contract and any changes to the esti-
mates are recorded in the period the change is identified and may
result in either an additional increase or decrease to the loss reserve.

Deferred Contract Costs and Deferred Contract Revenues

For long-term Outsourcing service agreements, implementation
efforts are often necessary to set up clients and their human resource
or benefit programs on the Company’s systems and operating
processes. For Qutsourcing services sold separately or accounted for
as a separate unit of accounting; specific, incremental and direct
costs of implementotion incurred prior to the services going live are
deferred and amortized over the period the related ongoing services
revenue is recognized. Such costs may include internal and external
costs for coding or creating customizations of systems, costs for con-
version of client data and costs to negotiate contract terms. For Out-
sourcing services that are accounted for as a combined unit of
accounting; specific, incremental and direct costs of implementation,
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as well as ongoing service delivery costs incurred prior to revenue
recagnition commencing are deferred and amortized over the
remoining contract services period. Implementation fees are also
generally received from our clients either up-front or over the ongo-
ing services pericad in the fee per porticipant. Lump sum implemen-
tation fees received from a client are initially deferred and then
recognized as revenue evenly over the contract ongoing services
period. If o client terminates an Outsourcing services arrangement
prior to the end of the contract, o loss on the contract may be
recorded if necessary end ony remaining deferred implementation
revenues and costs would then be recognized into earnings through
the termination date.

Performance-Based Compensation

Our compensation program includes a performance-based compo-
nent that is determined by management subject to annual review by
the Compensation and Leadership Committee of the Board of Direc-
tors. Performonce-baosed compensation is discretionary and is based
on individual, team and total Company performance. Performance-
based compensation is paid once per fiscal year after our annual
operating results are finalized., The amount of expense for perform-
once-based compensation recognized ot interim reporting dates
involves judgment, is based on quarterly and annual results as com-
pared to internal targets, and takes into account other factors,
including industry trends and the general economic environment,
Annual performance-bosed compensation levels may vary from cur-
rent expectations as a result of changes in the actual performance of
the Company, team or individual. As such, accrued amounts are sub-
ject to change in future periods if actual future performance varies
from performance levels anticipated in prior interim periods.

Client Receivables and Unbhilled Work In Process

We periodically evalugte the collectibility of our client receivables
and unbilled work in process based an o combination of factors. In
circumstances where we become aware of a specific client’s diffi-
culty in meeting its finoncial obligations to us (e.g., bankruptcy, fail-
ure to pay amounts due to us or to others), we record an ollowance
for doubtful accounts to reduce the clignt receivable or unbilled work
in process to what we reasonably believe will be collected. For all
other clients, we recognize an gllowence for doubtful accounts
based on post write-off history and the length of time the receivabies
are past due or unbilled work in process is not billed. Facts and cir-
cumstances may change, which would require us to alter our esti-
mates of the collectibility of client receivables and unbilled work in
process. A key factor mitigating this risk is our diverse client base.
For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, no single
client accounted for more than 10% of our total revenues.

Goodwill and Other Intengible Assets

In applying the purchase method of accounting for business com-
binations, amounts assigned to identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired have been based on estimated fair values as of the date of
the ocquisitions, with the remainder recorded as goodwill. Estimates
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of fair value have been based primarily upon future cash flow pra-
jections for the ocquired businesses and net assets, discounted to
present value using a risk adjusted discount rate. We evaluate our
goodwill for impairment annually and whenever indicators of
impaoirment exist. The evaluation is based upon a comparison of the
estimated fair volue of the reporting unit to which the goodwill has
been assigned to the sum of the carrying vatue of the assets and lia-
bilities for that reparting unit. The fair values used in this evaluation
are estimoted based upon discounted future cash flow projections
for the reporting unit. Qur estimate of future cash flows is based on
our experience, knowledge and typically third-party advice or mar-
ket data. However, these estimates can be affected by other factors
and economic conditions that can be difficult to predict. Intangible
ossets are initially valued at foir market value using generally
accepted valuation methods appropriate for the type of intangible
asset. Intangible ossets with definite lives are amortized over their
estimated useful lives and are reviewed for impairment if indicators
of impairment arise. The evaluation of impairment is based upona
camparison of the carrying amount of the intangible asset to the
estimated future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be gener-
ated by the asset. If estimated future undiscounted net cash flows
are less than the carrying omount of the asset, the asset is consid-
ered impaired. The impairment expense is determined by comparing
the estimated fair volue of the intangible asset to its carrying value,
with any shortiol! from fair value recognized as an expense in the
current period.

Retirement Plans

We provide pension benefits to certain of our employees outside of
North America and other postretirement benefits to certain of our
employees in North America. The valuation of the funded stotus and
net periodic pension and other postretirement benefit costs are cal-
culated using actuarial assumptions, which are reviewed annually.
The assumptions include rates of increases in employee compensa-
tion, interest rates vsed to discount liabilities, the long-term rate of
return on plan assets, anticipated future health-care costs and other
ossumptions involving demagraphic factors such as retirement,
mortality and turnover. The selection of assumptions is bosed on
both short-term and long-term historical trends and known eco-
nomic and market conditions at the time of the valuation. The use of
different assumptions would have resulted in different measures of
the funded status and net periodic pension and other postretirement
benefit expenses. Actual results in the future could differ from
expected results. We are not able to estimate the probobility of
actuaf results differing from expected results, but believe our
assumptions are appropriate. Qur ossumptions arefisted in Note 16.
The most critical assumptions pertain to the plans covering employ-
ees outside North America, as these plans are the most significant to
our consolidated financial statements.




Income Toxes

We are subject to income taxes in both the U.S. and numerous for-
eign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide income tax provision. In the ordinary course of global
business, there are many transactions and calculations where the
ultimote tax outcome is uncertain. Some of these uncertainties arise
gs o consequence of revenue sharing and cost reimbursement
arrangements amang related entities, the process of identifying
items of revenue and expense that qualify for preferential tax treat-
ment, ond segregation of foreign and domestic income and expense
to avoid double taxation. To the extent thot the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impoct the income tax pravision in
the period in which such determination is made, We record a valuo-
tion allowannce to reduce our deferred tax assets to the omount of
future tax benefit that is more likely than not to be realized. While we
have considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and
feasible tox planning strategies in assessing the need for the valua-
tion allowance, there is no assurance that the valuotion allowance
will not need to be increased to cover additional deferred tax assets
that may not be reolizable. Any increase in the valuation allowance
could have @ material adverse impact on our income tax provisions
and net income in the period in which such determination is mode.

Shore-Based Compensation
Our employees and directors may receive awaords of nonqualified
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted
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stock units, performance shares, performance units and cash-bosed
awards, and employees can also receive incentive stock options,

Restricted stock awards, including restricted stock and restricted
stock units, are measured using the fair market value of the stock as
of the grant date. The Company recognizes compensation expense,
net of estimated forfeitures on a straight-line basis annually over the
vesting period. Estimated forfeitures are reviewed periodically and
changes to the estimated forfeitures are adjusted through current
period eornings. Employer payroll taxes are also recorded os
expense when they become due over the vesting period. The remain-
ing unvested shares are subject to forfeiture and restrictions on sale
or transfer, generally for four years from the grant date.

The Company also grants nonqualified stock options at an exer-
cise price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s stock on
the grant dote. The Company applies the Black-Scholes valuation
method to compute the estimated foir value of the stock options and
recognizes compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures on o
straight-line bosis so that the oward is fully expensed at the vesting
date. Generally, stock options vest 25 percent on each anniversary
of the grant date, are fully vested four years from the grant date and
have o term of ten years.

New Accounting Pronouncements

The information required by this item is provided in Note 2 of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements contained in ltem 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Dato.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically funded our growth and working copital requirements with internally generated funds, credit facilities and term notes. We

betieve we have broad access to debt and equity capital morkets.

Summaory of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30,

[n thousonds 2007 2006 2005
Cash provided by operating activities $ 435,230 $ 381,018 $ 338,252
Cash (used in) provided by investing activities (32,502) (387.274) 54,203
Cash used in financing activities (174,579) (16,660) (358,520)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cosh equivaients 11,666 3.916 {688)
Netincrease {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 239,815 (19,000) 33,247
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 138,928 157,928 124,681
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 378,743 $ 138,928 $ 157,928

The Company believes it will be able to meet its cash requirements
for operations, anticipated growth and copital expansion. Cash,
cash equivalents and short-term investments were $595 million,
$449 million and $218 millien as of September 30, 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. The Company intends to fund working capital
requirements, principal and interest payments, ocquisitions (if any)
and other liahilities with cosh provided by operations, to the extent
available, supplemented by short-term and long-term borrowing
under new ond existing credit facilities.

Operating Activities

The increase in cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2007
was primorily due to an increase in cash collected on accounts
receivable and proceeds from contracts where revenue is deferred
until future periods. These were partially offset by a higher level of
performance-based compensation, severance poyments and tox
payments, net of refunds. The increase in cash provided by operat-
ing activities in fiscal 2006 wos primarily due to o lower level of per-
formance-based compensotion paid in fiscal 2006 for prior-year
results than was paid in the prior year partially offset by o decrease
in accounts payable.
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Investing Activities

The decrease in cash used in investing activities infiscal 2007 is due
to increased proceeds from the sale of short-term investments and o
decrease in capital expenditures. These were partially offset by an
increase in the purchase of short-term investments and an increase
in acquisitions. The short-term investments were utilized to fund the
higher performance-based compensation and the Company’s share
repurchase program. The increase in cash used in investing activi-
ties in fiscal 2006 resulted from approximately $463 million of pro-
ceeds received from the sale of short-term investments in the prior
year primarily to fund the Company’s share repurchases in 2005 as
well as on increose in the purchase of short-term investments in the
current year as a result of higher cash balances. These activities
were partially offset by lower capital expenditures, primarily on
computer equipment in fiscal 2006,

Financing Activities

The increase in cash used in financing activities in fiscal 2007 was
primarily due to an increase in share repurchases relating to the
Company’s share repurchase program, partially offset by an
increase in proceeds from the exercise of stock options. The Com-
pany repurchased approximately 6.1 million of its outstanding
shares at an averoage price of $30.24, for a total of approximately
$183.6 million, during the fiscal year. The decrease in cosh used in

Contractual Obligations

financing activities in fiscal 2006 was primarily due to the higher
share repurchases in the prior yeor as o result of the Company’s
share repurchase program and tender offer in the first half of 2005,
offset in part by higher net repayments of short-term borrowings ond
other debt in the current yeor.

We believe the cash on hand, together with funds from opera-
tions, other current assets and existing credit facilities will satisfy
our expected working copital, contractual obligations, capital
expenditures and investment requirements for at least the next
twelve months and for the foreseeable future,

At September 30, 2007 the Company had available credit facili-
ties with domestic and foreign banks for various purposes. The
amount of unused credit facilities as of September 30, 2007 was
approximately $229.2 million. Additional information on the Com-
pany's borrowings and available credit is included in Note 10 and
Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Contractuat Obligations

Significant ongoing commitments consist primarily of leases, debt,
purchase commitments and other long-term liobilities. The following
table shows the minimum payments required under existing agree-
ments which have initial or remaining non-cancelable terms in
excess of one year as of September 30, 2007.

Poyments Due in Fiscal Yeor

In millions Total 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012 Thereofter
Operating leases®™ $ 723 $ 95 $169 $142 $317
Capital leases™;
Principal 73 5 11 14 43
Interest 29 5 9 7 8
102 10 20 21 51
Debt®:
Principal 215 49 26 140 -
Interest 13 5 7 1 —
228 54 33 141 -
Purchase commitments® 168 67 90 8 3
Other long-term obligations® 72 8 16 10 38
Total contractual obligations $1,293 $234 £328 $322 $409

“"We have vorious third-party operating leoses for office space, furniture ond equipment such as copiers, servers and disk drives with terms ranging from one to twenty yeors.
Refer to Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information on operating leases,

@We have various telecommunications equipment instaliment notes under capital lease which are poyable over three to five years and are secured by the related equipment.
Refer to Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information on capital teases.

“The amounts for long-term debt assume that the respective debt instruments will be outstonding until their scheduied maturity dates. Convertible debt is included at its face
vglue. The amounts include interest on both fixed and variable interest rote debt. The current rate as of September 30, 2007 is assumed for the variable rate debt. 5ee Note 10
ond Note 11 1o the consolidoted financial statements for odditional information regarding our debt.

"Purchese commitments include, omang other things, telecommunication usage, software licenses, consulting services and insurance coverage obligations s well as other
obligations in the ordinary course of business thot we cannot concel or where we would be required to pay a termination fee in the event of cancellotion.

®0ther long-term obligations cansist primarily of payments for pensien plans, post retirement benefit plans and other long-term obligstions. As part of our merger with Exult, we
acquired certain software licenses for resale totaling appreximately $11 million under a long-term arrangement which requires periodic payments through June 2009,

© 24




Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement

We do not have any obligotions that meet the definition of an off-
balance sheet arrangement and thot have or are reasonably likely
to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Self-Insurance

We established a captive insurance subsidiary in fiscal 2003 as a
way to self-insure against certain business risks and losses. The cap-
tive insurance subsidiary has issued policies to cover the deductible
and an excess portion of various insured exposures, including the
deductible portions of our workers compensation and professional
liability insurance. We carry on umbrella policy to cover exposures in
excess of our deductibles.

Quantitotive and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk primarily from changes in interest
rotes and foreign currency exchange rates. Historicolly, we have not
entered into hedqing transactions, such as foreign currency forward
contracts or interest rate swaps, to manage this risk due to our low
percentage of foreign debt and restrictions on our fixed rate debt.
However, we may initiate o foreign currency management program
involving the uses of financia! derivatives in the future should busi-
ness conditions require. We do not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. At September 30, 2007, we
were not a party to any hedging transaction or derivative financial
instrument.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk primarily through our portfalio
of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and variable
interest rate debt.

Our portfolio of cash and cash equivalents and short-term invest-
ments is designed for safety of principal and liquidity. We invest in
highly rated money morket investments and debt securities and reg-
ularly monitor the investment ratings. The investments are subject
to inherent interest rate risk as investments mature and are rein-
vested at current market interest rates. The investment portfolio con-
sists primarily of fixed income securities such as commercial paper,
corporate notes, asset-backed securities, U.S. treasuries and agen-
cies and auction rate municipal bonds. Our portfolic earned interest
at an average rate of 5.76% during the year ended September 30,
2007. A one percentage point change would have impacted our
interest income by approximotely $4.1 million for the year ended
September 30, 2007.

Our short-term debt with a variable rate consists of our unsecured
lines of credit and a term credit loan facility. Our variable interest
rate debt had an effective interest rate of 5.74% during the year
endad September 30, 2007. A one percentage point increase would
have increased our interest expense related to all outstanding vari-
able rate debt, by approximately $0.5 million for the year ended
September 30, 2007.

Hewitt Associates, Inc,

Foreign Exchange Risk

For the year ended September 30, 2007, revenues from U.S. opera-
tions as o percent of total revenues were opproximotely 76%. Unre-
alized foreign currency translation gains were $49.8 million for the
year ended September 30, 2007, and were primarily due to the
changes in the value of the British pound sterling relotive to the U.S.
dollar over the prior year. We hove not entered into any foreign
currency derivative transactions.

Operating in international markets means that we are exposed to
movements in foreign exchange rates, primarily the British pound
sterling and more recently, the Canadian dollar and the Indian
rupee. Approximately 12% of our net revenues for the year ended
September 30, 2007, were from the United Kingdom. Approximately
5% of our net revenues for the year ended September 30, 2007, were
from Canada. Changes in these foreign exchonge rates can have a
significant impact on our translated internationol results of opera-
tions in U.S. dollars. A 10% change in the average exchange rate for
the British pound sterling for the year ended September 30, 2007,
would have impocted our operating loss by approximately $8.5 mil-
lion for the year ended September 30, 2007. [n recent years, the
Company has utilized India as o back office support location for both
technology infrastructure and in some limited cases customer call
center activities. A 10% change in the average exchange rote for the
Indian rupee for the year ended September 30, 2007, would have
impacted our operating loss by approximately $4.5 million for the
year ended September 30, 2007. A 10% change in the averoge
exchange rate for the Canadian dollar would have impacted our
operating loss by approximately $0.1 million for the year ended
September 30, 2007.
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Menagement’s Assessment of Internal Control
over Financial Reporting

The financial statements were prepared by management, which is
respansible for their integrity and objectivity and for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting.

The Company's internal control over financial reporting is

designed to provide reasonable assurance regording the reliability
of financic! reporting and the preporation of financial stotements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles. The Company's internal control over financial report-
ing includes those policies and procedures that:

i. pertain to the maintenence of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurotely ond fairly reflect the transactions and dispo-
sitions of the assets of the Compony;

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; ond

ifi. provide reasonable assurance regording prevention or timely
detection of unouthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financiol statements.

There are inherent limitotions in the effectiveness of any internal
control, including the possibility of human error and the circumven-
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tion or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal
controls can provide only reasonabte assurances with respect to
financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in con-
ditions, the effectiveness of internal controls may vary over time.

Management assessed the design and effectiveness of the Com-
pany’s internal control over financial reporting as of September 30,
2007. In making this assessment, mansgement used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread-
way Commission ("COS0”) in Internal Control—Integrated Frame-
work. Based on management’s assessment using those criteria, as of
September 30, 2007, monagement believes that the Company’s
internal controls over financial reporting are effective.

Ernst & Young, LLP, independent registered public accounting
firm, has oudited the financial statements of the Company for the fis-
cal years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and the Com-
pany’s internal control over financial reporting as of September 30,
2007. Their reports are presented on the following poges. The inde-
pendent registered public accountants and internal auditors advise
management of the results of their oudits, and moke recommendao-
tions to improve the system of internal controls. Management evalu-
otes the audit recommendations and takes appropriate action.

HEWITT ASSOCIATES, INC.




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Hewitt Associotes, Inc.:

We have audited Hewitt Associates, Inc.’s (the Company) internol
control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2007, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Hewitt Associotes, [nc.’s manage-
ment is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting included in the accompany-
ing report on Management’s Assessment of [nternal Control over
Financial Reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financiol
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our oudit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the oudit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was mointained in all materia! respects. Qur
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
finoncial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effective-
ness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circum-
stances. We believe that our cudit provides o reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is o process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparotion of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles. A compony's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the main-
tenance of records thot, in reasonable detail, accurately ond fairly

Hewitt Associaotes, Inc.

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the com-
pany; (2} provide reasonable ossurance that transactions are
recorded os necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in uccordance with authorizations of monagement and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable ossurance regording pre-
vention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dis-
position of the company's assets that could hove a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Hewitt Associates, Inc. maintained, in all moterial
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting os of
September 30, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in gccordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boord (United States),
the accompanying consolidated financial stotements of Hewitt
Associates, Inc. as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, and for each of
the three years in the period ended September 30, 2007, and our
report dated Navember 12, 2007, expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

Sanct ¥ MLLP

Chicago, Illincis
November 12, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Hewitt Associates, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Hewitt Associates, Inc. (o Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries
(the “Company”) as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Sep-
tember 30, 2007. These consolidated financiol statements are the
responsibility of the Compony's manogement. Qur responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consclidated finoncial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standords of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of materigl misstatement. An oudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supparting the amounts ond disclosures in the finan-
cial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial stotement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable bosis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to
obove present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated finan-
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ciol position of the Company as of September 30, 2007 ¢nd 2006,
and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2007, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As disclosed in Note 2 in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company adopted Stotement of Financial Account-
ing Standard (SFAS) No. 123(R) during the first quarter of fiscal
2006 and SFAS No. 158 effective September 30, 2007.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of Hewitt Assaciates, Inc.'s internal contral over finan-
cial reporting as of September 30, 2007, based on criteria estab-
lished in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis-
sion and our report dated November 12, 2007, expressed an unqual-
ified opinion thereon.

Gt ¥ MLLP

Chicago, [llinois
November 12, 2007




Consolidated Balance Sheets

Hewitt Associates, Inc.

September 30, September 30,
In thousands except for share and per share amounts 2007 2006
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cosh equivalents 5 378,743 $ 138,928
Short-term investments 216,726 310,527
Client receivables and unbilled work in process, less allowances
of $18,933 and $25,333 at September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively 632,011 622,270
Prepaid expenses and other current ossets 86,683 72,986
Funds held for clients 133,163 83,026
Deferred income taxes, net 32,533 17,096
Total current assets 1,479,859 1,244,833
Non-Current Assets:
Deferred contract costs 372,363 289,654
Property and equipment, net 355,907 411,205
Other intangible assets, net 196,133 242,108
Goodwill 319,314 544922
Other non-current assets, net 31,962 34,956
Total non-current assets 1,275,679 1,522,845
Totol Assets $2,755,538 $2.767.678
Liahilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 21,304 $ 31,256
Accrued expenses 212,097 194,736
funds held for clients 133,163 83,026
Advanced hillings to clients 170,131 176,563
Accrued compensation and benefits 353,265 263,143
Short-term debt 30,369 32,246
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 24,222 34,742
Total current liabilities 944,551 815,712
Non-Current Liabilities:
Deferred contract revenues 271,359 193,638
Debt and copitel lease obligations, less current portion 233,465 254,852
Other non-current liabilities 165,264 148,794
Deferred income taxes, net 102,887 98,313
Total non-current liabilities 772,975 695,597
Total Liabilities $1,717,526 $1,511,309
Stockho!ders’ Equity
Class A common stock, por value $0.01 per share, 750,000,000 shares authorized,
127,672,253 and 124,932,189 shares issued, 107,126,309 and 110,822,409 shares outstanding,
as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively 5 1,277 $ 1,249
Additional paid-in copital 1,472,409 1,368,189
Cost of common stock in treasury, 20,545,944 and 14,109,780 shares of Class A common stock
as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively (597,200) (401,365)
Retained earnings 38,144 213,224
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net 123,382 75,072
Total stockholders’ equity 1,038,012 1,256,369
Total Linbilities and Stockholders’ Equity $2,755,538 $2,767,678

The accompanying notes are an integral port of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Hewitt Associates, Inc.

Yeor Ended September 30,

In thousands except for share and per shore omounts 2007 2006 2005
Revenues:

Revenues before reimbursements (net revenues) 52,921,076 $2.788,722 $2,831,507

Reimbursements 69,250 68.439 58,143

Total revenues 2,990,326 2.857.161 2,889,650

Operating expenses:

Compensation and related expenses 1,906,158 1,799,743 1,646,304

Goodwill and asset impairment 326,615 255,873 9,615

Reimbursable expenses 69,250 68,439 58,143

Other operating expenses 636,698 642,803 781,579

Selling, general and administrative expenses 194,572 154,564 160,175

Total operating expenses 3,133,293 2,921,422 2,655,816

Operating (loss) income (142,967) (64,261) 233,834

Other income (expense), net 18,249 4,691 (13,319}
(Loss)income before income toxes (124,718) (59,570) 220,515
Provision for income taxes 50,362 56,368 85,783
Net (loss) income $ (175,080) $ (115,938) $ 134,732
{Loss) earnings per share:

Basic S (1.62) $ {1.08) $ 1.21

Diluted ) (1.62) $ {1.08) $ 1.19
Weighted overage shares:

Basic 107,866,281 107,642,383 111,340,261

Diluted 107,866,281 107,642,383 113,105,722

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these finoncial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Hewitt Associates, Inc.

Year Ended September 30,

Amounts in thousands 2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating octivities:
Net (loss) income $(175,080) $(115,938) $134,732
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and omortizatton, including omortization of deferred
contract revenues and costs 190,393 166,603 166,089
Goodwill and asset impairment 326,615 255,873 9,615
Share-based compensation 40,937 55,007 26,199
Deferred income taxes (19,147) 17,906 75,260
Gain on contribution of business - {7,127) -
Gain on sale of investment (5,982) - -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities,
net of effect of acquisitions and dispositions:
Client receivables and unbilled work in process 13,342 (14,634) 11,678
Prepaid expenses and other current assets {4,581) 21,072 (1,834)
Deferred contract costs (143,619) {170,309) (147.545)
Other assets (5,102) 1,244 (7.349)
Accounts payable (11,183) {27,324) 14,545
Accrued compensation and benefits 82,024 89,864 (73,800)
Accrued expenses 30,842 2.513 3,441
Advanced billings to clients (7,525) 18,361 43,817
Deferred contract revenues 111,930 95,189 64,884
Other long-term liabilities 11,366 (7.282) 18,520
Net cash provided by operating activities 435,230 381,018 338,252
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchoses of short-term investments (400,794) {356,365) (224,742)
Proceeds from sales of investments 502,331 105,678 462,951
Additions to property and equipment {88,477) {129,936) (177.280)
Cash paid for acquisitions and transaction costs, net of cash acquired (45,562) {(6.651) (6,726)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (32,502) (387,274) 54,203
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 54,183 14,537 9,863
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment compensation 4,912 1,084 -
Short-term borrowings 103,771 140,154 129,048
Repaoyments of short-term borrowings, copital leases and long-term debt (141,610) (159,708) (122,207)
Purchase of Class A common shares for treasury {195,835) (12,727) {375,224)
Net cash used in financing activities {174,579) (16.660) (358,520)
Effect of exchange rote chonges on cash and cash equivalents 11,666 3,916 (688)
Net increase {decrease) in cosh ond cosh equivalents 239,815 {19,000) 33,247
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 138,928 157,928 124,681
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 378,743 $138,928 $157,928

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Class A Closs B Closs €
Common Shares Common Shares Common Shares
In thousands except for shere and per share amounts Shares  Amount Shores  Amount Shares  Amount
Balance ot September 30, 2004 32,480,669  $325 61,707,114 $617 4,391,862 $44
Comprehensive income:
Netincome - - — - - -
Other comprehensive income:
Minimum pension liability adjustment - - - - -
Unrealized losses an short-term investments — - — -
Foreign currency translation adjustments - - - - - -
Total other comprehensive income
Totel comprehensive income
Acquisition of Exult 22,159,921 222 - - - -
Acquisition of Exult Warrant - — - - - -
Acquisition of Exult—issuance of restricted stock 689,823 7 - — - -
Restricted stock award grant 3,200 - — — — -
Amortization of unearned compensation - — - - — -
Tax benefits from stock plans - - - - - -
Restricted stock unit vesting 37.946 — - - - -
Purchase of Class A common shares for treasury 3681872 37 (3.681.,872) (37) - -
Issuance of Closs A common shares:
Employee stock options 445,528 4 - - - -
Qutside Directors 13,932 — - — — —
Rule 144 share conversions and other share conversions 13,694,794 137 (12.843,393) (128) (851,401} (9)
Net forfeiture of restricted common stock pursuant to the
global stock plan and other (236,725) (2) - - - -
Balance at September 30, 2005 72,970,960 730 45,181,849 452 3,540,461 35
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss - - - - - -
Other comprehensive incoma:
Minimum pension liability adjustment - - - - - -
Unrealized gains on short-term investments - — - - — -
Foreign currency translation adjustmenis — - — - - -
Totat other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive lgss
Restricted stock award grant 2,750,481 28 - - - -
Stock-based compensation expense - - - - - -
Cumulative effect of ¢ change in accounting principle — - — - - -
Tax benefits from stock plans — - - — - -
Restricted stock unit vesting 121,520 1 - - - -
Purchase of Class A commaon shares for treasury - - - - - -
Issuance of Class A common shares:
Employee stock options 647,740 6 - - — -
Qutside Directors 17,089 — — — — —
Rule 144 share conversions and other share conversions 48,722,310 487 (45,181,849) (452) (3,540,461) (35)
Net forfeiture of restricted common stock pursuant to the
%Iobui stock£|0n and other (297,911) (3 - - - -
Adoption of SFAS 123(R)—Adjustment to remove restricted
stock units and unearned compensation — - - — - —
Balance at September 30, 2006 124,932,189 1,249 - - - —
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss - - - - - -
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains on short-term investments - - - - - -
Foreign currency translation adjustments - - - - - -
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss
Stock-bosed compensation expense - - - - - -
Tox benefits from stock plons - - - - - -
Restricted stock unit vesting 613,678 6 - - - -
Purchase of Class A common shares for treasury - - - - - -
Issuance of Class A common shares:
Employee stock options 2,377,618 24 - - - -
QOutside Directors ,508 - - - - -
Net forfeiture of restricted common stock pursuant to the
lobal stockplon and other (254,740) (2) - - - -
Adoption of SFAS 158 (net of tax) - - - - -
Balance at September 30, 2007 127,672,253 51,277 - § - - 5—

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Hewitt Associates, Inc.

. Accumulated
Restricted Additional Treasury Stock, Retained Other
Stock Units Paid-in at Cost Eornings Unearned Camprehensive
Shares Amount Copital Shares Amount (Deficit) Compensation Income (Loss) Total
118,363 $2,166 % 633,934 526,518 $ (13.414) $194,430 $(27.799) $ 69,050 $ 856,353
- - - - - 134,732 - - 134,732
— — - - - - - (2.397% (2 39?%
- - - - - -~ - (135 (135
- - - — - — - 3,270 3,270
738
135,470
- - 653,162 — — — {2,014) - 651,370
- - 973 - - - - - 973
15.386 412 18,492 - - - (18,911 - —
2,000 54 79 - - - {133 - -
- - — - - - 25,895 - 25,895
- - 3,353 - — — - - 3,353
(37.,946) (703) 703 — - - — — —
- - — 12987877 (375,224) - — - (375,224)
— — 9,859 - - - - - 9,863
10,908 320 430 — - - (446) — 304
(9.744) {214) (5.866) - - - 6,082 - -
98,967 2,035 1,315,119 13,514,395 (388,638) 329,162 (17.326) 69,788 1,311,357
- — - - - {115,938) - - (115,938}
— - — — — — — 2,397 2,397
- - - - - - 127 127
- — — - - - - 2.760 2,760
5,284
(110,654)
- - (28) ~ - - - - -
- - 55,126 - - - — - 55,126
- - (119 - - - - - (119}
- - (1,15(% - - - - - {1,151
- — - 595,385 (12,727) - - — (12,727)
- — 14,531 - - - - - 14,537
. - - - - - - - (3)
(98.967) (2.035) {15,288) - - — 17,326 — 3
- - 1,368,189 14,109,780 (401,365) 213,224 - 75,072 1,256,369
- - - - - {175,080) - - (175,080)
- - - - - - - 8
- - - - - - - 49,827 49,827
49,835
(125,245)
- - 40,925 - - - - - 40,925
- - 9.140 - - - - - 9,140
- - — 6,436,164 (195,835) - - - (195,835)
- - 54,159 - - - - - 54,183
- - 2 - - - - - -
- - - - - - - (1,525) (1,525)
- s - $1,472,409 20,545,944 $(597,200) $ 38,144 $ - $123,382 $1,038,012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Fiscal Yeors Ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005

In thousands except for share and per share amounts

1. Description of Business

Hewitt Associates, Inc., a Deloware corporation, and its subsidiaries
{“Hewitt" or the “Company™) pravide global human resources bene-
fits, outsourcing and consulting services. Benefits Qutsourcing
includes administrative services for health and welfare, defined
contribution and defined benefit plans. Human Resource Business
Process Outsourcing (HR BPO) includes warkforce administration,
rewards monagement, recruiting and staffing, payroll processing,
performance management, learning and development, talent man-
ogement, relocation services, time ond attendance, accounts
payable, procurement expertise and vendor management. Hewitt's
Consulting business provides o wide array of consulting and actuar-
ial services covering the design, implementation, communication
and operation of health and welfare, compensation and retirement
plons and broader human resources programs and processes.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The consalidated financial statements are prepored on the occrual
basis of accounting. The significant accounting policies are summa-
rized below:

Principles of Consolidation and Combination

The occompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the
operations of the Company and its majority owned subsidigries after
elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. Invest-
ments in affiliated companies in which the Company does not have
control, but has the ability to exercise significant influence over
governance and operations {generally 20-50% ownership), are
accounted for by the equity method.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of fingncial statements and related disclosures in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United Stotes of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consoli-
doted financial statements and accompanying notes. Estimates are
used for, but not limited to, the accounting for controct and project
loss reserves, performance-bosed compensation, the allowance for
doubtful accounts, depreciation and amortization, asset impair-
ment, toxes and any contingencies. Although these estimates gre
based on manogement’s best knowledge of current events and
actions that the Company may undertoke in the future, actual results
may be different from the estimates.

Revenue Recognition
Revenues include fees generated from Qutsourcing contracts and
from Consulting services provided to the Company’s clients.
Revenues from sales or licensing of software are not material. The
Compeny recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, services have been rendered, our fee is deter-
minable and collectibility is reasonably assured.

The Company’s Qutsourcing contracts typicaily have three- to
five-year terms for benefits services and seven- to ten-year terms for
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HR BPO services. The Company recognizes revenues for non-refund-
able, up-front implementation fees evenly over the period the related
ongoing service revenues ore recognized. Services provided outside
the scope of the Company’s Qutsourcing contracts are recognized on
a time-and-materiol or fixed-fee bosis.

The Company’s clients typically pay for Consulting services either
on a time-and-material or fixed-fee basis. Revenues are recognized
under time-and-material-bosed arrangements monthly as services
are provided. On fixed-fee engugements, revenues are recognized
either as services are provided using a proportional performance
method or ot the completion of a project based on facts and circum-
stances of the client arrangement.

Contract losses on Cutsourcing or Consulting arrangements are
recognized in the period in which the loss becomes probable and
the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable, Contract losses are
determined to be the amount by which the estimated direct costs,
including any remaining deferred contract costs, exceed the esti-
mated total revenues that will be generated by the contract. When a
loss is identified, it is first recorded as an impairment of deferred
contract costs related to the specific contract, if applicable, with the
remaining amount recorded os a loss reserve, Estimates are moni-
tored during the term of the contract and any changes to the esti-
motes are recorded in the period the chonge is identified and may
result in either an additional incrense or decrease to the loss reserve.

During fiscal 2007, the Company recorded o $10,146 pre-tax non-
cash charge related to certain European Benefits Outsourcing con-
tracts. This charge is reflected as 0 $3,140 impairment of deferred
contract costs and a $7,006 loss reserve provision included in com-
pensation and related expenses.

During fiscal 2006, the Company recorded o $72,641 pre-tax
non-cash charge related to certain HR BP0 contracts resulting from
higher than expected implementation and future ongoing costs to be
incurred over the life of the contract. This charge was reflected as o
$61,614 impairment of deferred controct costs ond 0 $11,027 loss
reserve provision included in compensation and related expenses.

In connection with the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF") Issue
No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables, the
Company has contracts with multiple elements primarily in its Bene-
fits Qutsourcing and HR BPO segments. Multiple-element arrange-
ments are ossessed to determine whether they can be separated into
maore than ane unit of accounting. EITF Issue 00-21 establishes the
following criteria, all of which must be met, in order for a deliverable
to qualify os o separote unit of accounting:

+ The delivered items have velue to the client on o stand-olone
basis,

« There is objective and reliahle evidence of the fair value of the
undelivered items, and

+ The arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the
delivered items, and delivery or performance of the undelivered
items is considered probable and substantially in the control of
the Company.




[f there is objective and religble evidence of fair value for all units of
accounting in an arrangement, the arrangement consideration is
allocated to the separate units of accounting based on each unit's
relative fair value. Revenue is then recognized using a proportional
performance method such as recognizing revenue based on transac-
tional services delivered or on a stroight-line basis (as adjusted pri-
marily for volume changes), as oppropriate. If these criteria are not
met, deliverables included in an arrangement are accounted foros o
single unit of accounting and revenue and cost is deferred until the
period in which the final deliverable is provided or o predeminant
service level hos been atioined.

Revenues enrned in excess of billings are recorded os unbilled
work in process. Billings in excess of revenues earned are recorded
as advanced billings to clients, o deferred revenue ligbility, until
services are rendered.

The Company considers the criteria established by EITF Issue No.
99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as o Principal versus Net os an Agent,
in determining whether revenue should be recognized on a gross
versus a net basis. In consideration of these criteria, the Company
recognizes revenue primarily on a gross baosis. Foctors considered
in determining if gross or nei recognition is appropriate include
whether the Company is primarity responsible to the client for the
delivery of services, changes to the delivered product, performs part
of the service delivered, has discretion on vendor selection or bears
credit risk.

In occordance with E1TF Issue No. 01-14, Income Statement Char-
acterization of Reimbursements Received for "Out-of-Pocket” Expenses
Incurred, reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenses
incurred are characterized as revenues and are shown as a sepa-
rate component of total revenues, Similarly, related reimbursable
expenses are also shown separately within operating expenses.

Deferred Contract Costs and Deferred Contract Revenues

For long-term Qutsourcing service agreements, implementation
efforts are often necessary to set up clients and their human
resource or benefit programs on the Company's systems and oper-
ating processes. For Qutsourcing services sold separately or
accounted for as a separote unit of accounting, specific, incremental
and direct costs of implementation incurred prior to the services
going live are deferred and amortized over the period the reloted
ongoing services revenue is recognized. Such costs may include
internal and external costs for coding or creating customizations of
systems, costs for conversion of client dota and costs to negotiate
contract terms. For Qutsourcing services that ere accounted for as a
combined unit of accounting; specific, incremental and direct costs
of implementotion, as well as ongoing service delivery costs
incurred prior to revenue recognition commencing are deferred and
amortized over the remaining contract services period. Implementa-
tion fees are also generally received fram our clients either up-front
or over the ongoing services period in the fee per participant. Lump
sum implementation fees received from o client are initially deferred
ond then recognized as revenue evenly over the ongoing contract
services period. If a client terminates an Qutsourcing services

Hewitt Associates, Inc.

arrangement prior to the end of the contract, a loss on the contract
may be recorded if necessary and any remaining deferred implemen-
tation revenues and costs woutd then be recognized into earnings
through the termination date.

Performance-Based Compensation

The Company’s compensation program includes a perfarmance-
based component that is determined by management subject to
annual review by the Compensation and Leadership Committee of
the Board of Directars. Performance-based compensation is discre-
tionary and is based on individuol, team, and total Company per-
formance. Performance-hased compensation is paid once per fiscal
year ofter the Company’s annual operating results are finalized. The
amount of expense for performance-based compensation recog-
nized ot interim dates involves judgment, is bosed on quarterly and
annuai results as compaored to internal targets and tokes into
account other factors, including industry trends and the general eco-
nomic environment. Annual performance-based compensation lev-
els may vary from current expectations os a result of changes in the
actual performonce of the Company, team or individual. As such,
accreed amounts are subject to change in future periods if octual
future performance varies from performance levels onticipated in
pricr interim periods.

Income Taxes

The Company applies the asset and liability method described in
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”} No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and ligbitities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and
tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using tax rotes expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recov-
ered or settled. The effect on deferred tox assets and liabilities of
a change in taox rotes is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are recognized
to reduce the deferred tax ossets to the amount that is more likely
than not to be realized. In assessing the likelihood of realization,
management considers estimates of future toxable income.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's foreign operations use local currency as their func-
tional currency. Accardingly, assets ond liabilities of foreign sub-
sidiaries are translated into U.S. Dollars at exchange rates in effect
at year-end, while revenues and expenses ore translated at average
exchange rates prevoiling during the year. Transiotion adjustments
are reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income {loss) in stockholiders’ equity. Gains or losses resulting fram
foreign exchange transactions are recorded in earnings within other
income (expense), net. Expense totaled $3,58% and $94 in fiscal 2007
and 2006, respectively and income totaled $447 in fiscal 2005.
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Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company's financial instruments that are exposed to concentro-
tions of credit risk consist of cash equivalents, client receivables and
unbilled work in process. Hewitt invests its cash equivalents in the
highest rated money morket and similar investments and continu-
ously monitors the investment ratings. Concentrations of credit risk
with respect to unbilled revenues and receivables are limited as no
client makes up a significant portion of the Company's billings. Credit
risk itself is limited due to the Company’s lorge number of Fortune 500
clients, its clients’ strong credit histories and their dispersion across
many different industries and geographic regions. For each of the
years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, no single client
represented 10% or mare of the Company's total revenues.

Fair Volue of Financial Instruments

Cash and cosh equivalents, marketable securities and client receiv-
ables are financiat assets with carrying volues thot approximate foir
value, Accounts poyable and the Company’s variable rate debt are
financial ligbilities with carrying values that approximaote fair value.
As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, the carrying value of the Com-
pany's fixed rate unsecured senior term notes was $70,000 and
$98.,000, respectively, and the foir value was estimated to be
approximately $74,955 and $105,194, respectively. The estimate
of fair value was cafculated by discounting the future cash flows of
the senior term notes ot rates currently offered to the Company for
similar debt instruments with comparable maturities. At September
30, 2007 and 2006, the carrying value of the Company’s unsecured
convertible senior notes with o face value of $110,000 was
$106,080 and $104,805, respectively, and the fair volue was esti-
mated to be $106,563 and $102,850, respectively based on the
current market volue of this publicly traded security.

Cash and Cash Equivaolents

The Company defines cash and cash equivalents as cash and invest-
ments with maturities of 30 days or less when purchased. At Sep-
tember 30, 2007 and 2006, cash and cash equivalents included
cosh in checking and money market accounts as well as corporate
tox-advantaged money market investments maturing in 90 days or
less. At September 30, 2007, $803 of the Company’s cosh was
restricted in connection with a prior-year acquisition. The restricted
cash will be paid out under the terms of an Escrow Agreement and no
later than Gctober 30, 2008.

Funds Held for Clients

Some of the Compony’'s Outsourcing agreements reguire the
Company to hold funds on beholf of clients. Funds held on behalf
of clients are segregated from Hewitt corporote funds. There is
usually a short period of time between when we receive funds and
when we pay obligations on behalf of clients.
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Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments include marketable equity and debt securi-
ties that are classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair
value. Marketable debt securities include auction rate securities
with contractuol maturities of up to 30 years. The auction rate secu-
rities have interest re-set dates that occur every 28-30 doys or less
and can be actively marketed at engoing auctions that occur every
28-30 days or less. Unrealized gains or losses are reported g5 @
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
Realized gains or losses are reported in other income (expense), net
on the consolidated stotements of operations.

Client Receivables and Unbilled Work in Process

The Company periodically evaluates the collectibility of its client
receivables and unbilled work in process based on a combination of
factors. In circumstances where the Company becomes oware of o
specific client’s difficulty in meeting its financial obligations {e.g.,
bankruptcy filings, foilure to pay omounts due to the Company or to
others), the Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts to
reduce the client receivable orunbilled work in process to what the
Company reasonably believes will be collected. For all other clients,
the Company recognizes an allowance for doubtful accounts based
on past write-off history and the length of time the receivables are
past due or unbilled work in process is not billed. Facts and circum-
stances may change that would require the Company to alter its esti-
mates of the collectibility of client receivables and unbilled work in
process. Accounts are written off ogoinst the allowance when the
Company determines that the receivable will not be collected.

Property cnd Equipment

Property and equipment, which include amounts recorded under
capital leases, are recorded at cost. Depreciation and omortization
are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets, which are as follows:

Asset Description Asset Life
Computer equipment 3toSyears
Capitalized software 3to5years
Telecommunications equipment 5years
Furniture and equipment Stol5 years
Buildings 15to 39 years

Lesser of estimated
useful life or lease term

Leasehold improvements

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying emount of an
asset may not be recovercble. Recoverability of long-lived ossets
held for use are assessed by a comparison of the carrying amount of
the asset to the estimated future undiscounted net cash flows
expected to be generated by the osset. If estimated future undis-
counted net cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the
asset, the asset is considered impaired and expense is recorded in
on amount required to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its
fair value.



Software Devetopment Costs

Software development costs for software developed for internal
use are accounted for in accordance with the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of Position No. 98-1
(“SOP 98-1"), Accounting for Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use. SOP 98-1 requires the copitalization of cer-
tain costs incurred in connection with developing or obtaining inter-
nal use software. Costs copitalized in accordance with SOP 98-1 are
included in deferred contract costs in the consolidated balance
sheet. The Company amortizes the software costs over periods runging
from three to five years.

Costs that are incurred in the preliminary project stage are
expensed as incurred. Once the copitalization criteria of SOP 98-1
have been met, external direct costs of materiols and services con-
sumed in developing or obtaining internal-use computer software;
payroll and payroll-related costs for employees who are directly
associated with and who devote time to the internal-use computer
software project (to the extent of the time spent directly on the proj-
ect); and interest costs incurred when developing computer software
forinternol use are copitalized.

Goodwili and Intangible Assets
Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment annually or
more frequently if indicators of impairment arise. The evaluation is
based upon a comparison of the estimated fair volue of the reporting
unit to which the goodwill has been ossigned to the sum of the corry-
ing value of the assets and liabilities for that reporting unit. The fair
values used in this evaluation are estimated based upon discounted
future cash flow projections for the reporting unit. These cash flow
projections are based upon a number of estimates and assumptions.
Intangible assets are initially volued at fair market value using gen-
erally accepted voluation methods appropriote for the type of intan-
gible asset. [ntangible ossets with definite lives are amortized over
their estimated useful lives and are reviewed for impairment if indi-
cators of impairment arise. The evaluation of impaoirment is based
upon a comparison of the carrying omount of the intangible asset to
the estimated future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be
generated by the osset. If estimated future undiscounted net cash
flows are less than the carrying amount of the osset, the asset is con-
sidered impaired. The impoirment expense is determined by com-
paring the estimated fair value of the intangible asset to its carrying
value, with any shortfall from foir value recognized os an expense in
the current period.

Amortization of the Company's definite lived intongible assets is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, which are as follows:

Asset Description Asset Life
Trademarks and tradenomes 3to10 years
Core technology 10 years
Customer relotionships 10 to 30 years

Hewitt Associates, Inc.

Share-Based Compensation

On October 1, 2005 the Company odopted SFAS 123(R), “Share-
Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)"), using the modified prospective
method. Upon the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company recog-
nized an immaterial one-time gain in compensation and reloted
expenses related to the requirement to apply an estimoted forfeiture
rate to unvested awards. Previously, the Company recorded forfei-
tures as incurred. The Company has also elected to recognize the
compensation cost of all share-based owards other than those with
performance conditions on @ stroight-line basis over the vesting
period of the aword. Compensation cost of all share-based owards
with performance conditions are recognized on a straight-line basis
over the requisite service period or the implicit service period if it is
probable that the performance conditions will be met. Under SFAS
123(R), benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compen-
sation expense are now reported as o financing cash flow, rather
than an operating cash flow as prescribed under the prier occount-
ing rules.

Restricted stock awards, including restricted stock and restricted
stock units, ore measured using the fair morket value of the stock as
of the grant date. The Company recognizes compensation expense,
net of estimated forfeitures on o stroight-line basis over the vesting
period. Estimated forfeitures are reviewed periodically and changes
to the estimated forfeitures are adjusted through current period
earnings. Employer payroll toxes are also recorded os expense when
they become due over the vesting period. The remaining unvested
shares are subject to forfeiture and restrictions on sale or transfer
based on vesting dotes.

The Company also granted nonguakified stock options at an exer-
cise price equal to the fair market value of the Company's stock on
the grant date. The Company applies the Black-5choles valuation
method to compute the estimated fair value of the stock options and
recognizes compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures on o
stroight-line basis so thot the oward is fully expensed at the vesting
date. Generally, stock options vest 25 percent on each anniversory
of the grant date, are fully vested four years from the grant dete, and
have a term of ten years.

Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company occounted for stock-based
compensation under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Corn-
pensation, as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, which allowed companies
to apply the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” ("APB 25™}. Under
APB 25, no compensation expense was recognized for nonquolified
stock option awords as the exercise price of the awards on the date
of grant wos equal to the current market price of the Compony’s
stock, However, the Company did recognize compensation expense
in connection with the issuonce of restricted stock and restricted
stock units. Restricted stock awards, including restricted stock and
restricted stock units were initially recorded os unearned compensa-
tion on the balance sheet. The unearned compensation was omor-
tized to compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period. Forfeitures of restricted stock awards were recog-
nized as they occurred.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Stondards Board
{“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Lighilities—Including an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 115. This Statement permits entities to choose to
measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair
value. This Statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s
first fiscal yeor that begins after November 15, 2007 {our fiscal year
2009). The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact, if
any, of SFAS No. 159 on its consolidated financiol statements.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
(SAB) No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements
When Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,
("SAB No. 1087). SAB No. 108 addresses the pracess and diversity in
practice of quantifying financial statement misstatements resulting
in the potential build up of improper amounts on the balance sheet.
The adoption of SAB No. 108, effective September 30, 2007, did not
have o material impact on our consolidated financial stotements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements, (*SFAS No. 1577). SFAS No. 157 establishes a frame-
work for measuring fair value and expands disclosures obout fair
value measurements, The changes to current practice resulting from
the application of this Staiement relate to the definition of fair value,
the methads used to measure fair value and the expanded disclo-
sures about fair value measurements. The Statement is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 {our fiscal yeor
2009) and interim periods within those fiscal years. We do not

believe that the adoption of the provisions of SFAS No. 157 will
materially impoct our financial position end results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans—on amendment of FASS Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and
132(R), ("SFAS No. 158"). SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to
recognize the over-funded or under-funded stotus of o defined bene-
fit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset
or liahility in its statement of firancial position and to recognize
changes in thot funded status in the year in which the changes occur
through other comprehensive income. SFAS No. 158 also requires
on employer to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of the
date of the employer's fiscal year-end. The provisions of this State-
ment are effective for an emplayer with publicly traded equity secu-
rities and are required to recognize the funded status of o defined
benefit postretirement plan and to provide the required disclosures
as of the end of the fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006 (our
fiscal year 2007); the measurement requirements are effective for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008 (our fiscal year 2009).
The Company adopted the recognition and disclosure requirements
of SFAS No. 158 as of September 30, 2007. Adoption of SFAS No.
158 resulted in o decreose to accumulated other comprehensive
income of approximotely $1,525, net of $1,202 deferred income
tax.

The following table summarizes the incremental effects of the ini-
tial adoption of SFAS No. 158 an our consolidated balance sheet at
September 30, 2007:

Befare Application of SFASNo.158  After Application of

SFAS No. 158 Adjustments SFASNo. 158

Current assets—deferred income taxes, net $ 31,795 $ 738 $ 32533
Other non-current liabilities 162,537 2727 165,264
Non-current liahilities—deferred income taxes, net 103,351 (464) 102,887
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net 124,907 (1,525) 123,382

For further discussion on our retirement plans, see Note 16.

InJune 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48™),
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes
detailed guidance for the financial statement recognition, measure-
ment and disclosure of uncertain tax positions recognized in an
enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB State-
ment No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Tax positions must meet
a mare-likely-than-not recognition threshold at the effective dote to
be recognized upon the adoption of FIN 48 and in subsequent peri-
ods. FIN 48 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after Decem-
ber 15, 2006 (our fiscal year 2008) and the provisions of FIN 48 will
be applied to cll tax positions under Stotement No. 109 upon initial
odoption, The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of this
interpretation will be reported as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings for thet fiscal year. The Company is
currently evaluoting the potential impact of FIN 48 on its consoli-
dated financial statements.
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In June 2006, the FASB rotified the Emerging Issues Task Force
{“EITF") consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-2, Accounting for Sabbatical
Leave and Other Similar Benefits Pursuant to FASB Statement No, 43
(“EITF 06-2"). EITF 06-2 requires companies to accrue the cost of
such compensated absences over the requisite service period. The
Company currently accounts for the cost of compensated obsences
for sabbatica! programs when the eligible employee completes the
requisite service period. The Company is required to apply the pravi-
sions of EITF 06-2 at the beginning of fiscal year 2008. EITF 06-2
ollows for adoption through retrospective application to all prior
periods or through a cumulative effect adjustment to retained earn-
ings if it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects of
the chonge on prior pericds presented. The Company is currently
evaluating the financial impact of this guidance and the method of
adoption which will be used.




Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation. The prior vear Statement of Cush Flows
reflects the inclusion of amortization of deferred contract revenues
and costs as well as asset impairments within Adjustments to recon-
cite net (foss) income to net cash provided by operating activities, with
the corresponding offset within Changes in operating assets and lia-
bilities. In addition, as discussed in Note 23, segment results for
2006 have been recast to conform to the 2007 presentation.

3. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share ("EPS”) is calculoted by dividing net
income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding. Diluted EPS includes the components of basic EPS and
also gives effect to dilutive common stock equivalents. Treasury
stock is not considered outstanding for either basic or diluted EPS os
weighted from the date the shares were ploced into treasury. Far
purposes of calculating basic and diluted earnings per share, vested
restricted stock awards are considered outstanding. Under the treas-
ury stack method, diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that
could occur if securities or other instruments that are convertible
into commen stock were exercised or could result in the issuance
of common stock. Potentially dilutive commaon stock equivalents
include unvested restricted stock and restricted stock units, unexercised
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stock options and warrants that are “in-the-money” and outstanding
convertible debt securities which would have a dilutive effect if
converted from debt to commen stock. Restricted stock awards
generally vest 25% on each anniversary of the grant daie and are
not considered outstanding in bosic eornings per share until the
vesting date.

In July 2006, the Company’s Class B stockholders who were par-
ties to a Stockholders’ Agreement agreed to terminate that agree-
ment which provided for, among other things, block voting of Class B
common stock. In connection with the termination of the Stockhold-
ers’ Agreement, effective July 31, 2006, an aggregate of 34,703,814
shares of Closs B common stock and 2,892,943 shares of Class C
common stock were converted into an aggregate of 37,596,757
shares of Class A common stock. As a result, effective that date, the
Company had no Closs B or Class C shares outstanding. Prior to that
date, each share of the Company’s Class B and Class C common stock
was convertible into Class A common stock on a one-for-one basis,
subject to certain resirictions, and has been included in both besic
and diluted outstanding shares for the year ended September 30,
2005. The Company has amended its Certificate of Incorporation to
eliminate the Class B and Class C common stock.

The following table presents computations of bosic end diluted
EPS in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America:

Year Ended September 30,

2007 2006 2005
Net {loss) income as reported $(175,080) $(115,938) $134.732
Weighted average number of common stock for basic 107,866,281 107.642383 111,340,261
Incremental effect of dilutive common stock equivalents:
Unvested restricted stock owords - - 687,104
Unexercised in-the-money stock options - - 1,078.357
Weighted average number of common stock for diluted 107,866,281 107,642,383 113,105,722
Earnings per share—basic $ (1.62) $ (1.08) 3 121
Earnings per share—diluted $ (1.62) $ (1.08) $ 119

During fiscal 2007 and 2006, the Company reported a consolidated
net loss. As a result of the net loss, unvested restricted stock awards
and unexercised in-the-money stock options were antidilutive for
these years ond were not included in the computation of diluted
weighted average shares.

Debt securities convertible into 1,870,748 weighted average
shares of Class A commaon stock were outstanding in the years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, but were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share because the effect of
including the convertible debt securities would be antidilutive, as
the effect of the assumed discontinuation of interest expense, net of
tax would be greater than the addition of assumed converted shares.
Warrants to purchase 200,000 weighted average shares of Closs A

common stock, which the Company assumed in the 2005 merger
with Exult, Inc. (“Exult”), were outstanding in the years ended Sep-
tember 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, but were not included in the com-
putation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise price
of the warrants, which is formula-based with @ minimum price of
$37.75 per share, was greoter than the overage market price of the
Class A commeon stock. Stock options to purchase 888,494 weighted
average shares in 2007, 9,822,136 weighted averoge shares in
2006 and 958,995 weighted average shares in 2005 of Class A
common stock, were outstanding but were not included in the com-
putation of diluted earnings per share becouse the exercise prices
of the options were greater than the overage market price of the
Class A comman stock.
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4, Acquisitions and Dispositions

The Company continually assesses strategic acquisitions to comple-
ment its current business or to expand related services. During fiscal
2007, 2006 ond 2005, the Company completed the following acqui-
sitions and dispositions:

2007 Acquisitions

Reallife HR Acquisition

On September 4, 2007, the Company purchased 100% of the out-
standing shares of RealLife HR {“"RealLife”) for $42,000. The pur-
chase price was paid in cash with $4,000 of the consideration paid
to an Escrow Fund to be utilized to settle purchase price adjust-
ments. ReqlLife is a health and welfare administration firm located
in the U.S. RealLife historicelly has focused on outsourcing services
for middle market entities. The Company has made preliminary
purchose price ollocations resufting in goodwill of approximatety
$30,859 being recorded in the Benefits Outsourcing segment and
anticipates finalizing the purchase price allocations within ene year
of the acquisition date. The results of operations for RealLife have
beeninciuded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations since
its acquisition.

2006 Acquisitions and Dispositions

On September 20, 2006, the Company purchased 100% of the out-
stonding shares of an analytical consultancy business focused
on pay and benefits benchmarking in Sweden for approximately

5. Short-Term Investments

$6,400. The purchase price is subject to certain contingent
payments of opproximately $835, held as restricted cosh, if the
acquired entity achieves specific operating targets. Payments will
be made no loter than October 30, 2008 and will be accounted for as
additional purchase price. In September 2006, the Company made
the initiol scheduled escrow payment of approximately $140.

On October 1, 2005, the Company contributed its retirement and
financial manogement business within Germany in exchange for an
increased investment in @ German actuarial business (“investee”).
The Company had acquired o minority interest in investee on July 13,
2005 for approximately $5,400 and currently has a 28% non-con-
trolling interest in the investee. The investment is accounted for
under the equity methed of accounting. At the end of year six from
the original investment dote, the Company has an option to pur-
chase the remaining interest in the investee and the investee stock-
holders have an option to put their remaining interest in the investee
to the Company. The final purchase price will be subject to a third-
party independent appraiser.

2005 Acquisitions

On September 5, 2005, the Company purchased 100% of the out-
standing shares of a pension manogement business in The Nether-
tands for approximately $11,400. The purchase price was subject to
certain contingent payments based on the final opening balance
sheet which were resolved in fiscal 2006 ond an additionol $422
was paid out end accounted for as additional purchase price.

As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, short-term investments are comprised of avoilable-for-sale securities as follows:

September 30, 2007 September 30, 2006

Amortized Estimoted Amortized Estimated
Cost Foir Value Cost Fair Value

Short-term investments:
Corporate notes $ - 5 - $ 1000 $ 1001
Asset-backed securities - - 1,063 1,057
U.S. Treasuries and Agencies - - 997 994
Auction rate municipal bonds 216,726 216,726 307,475 307,475
Totol $216,726 $216,726  $310,535  $310,527

Based on the contractual maturities of the availoble-for-sale debt securities as of September 30, 2007 and 2006, the amortized cost and

estimated fair market value of the securities were as follows:

September 30, 2007

Sepiember 30, 2008

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated
Cost Foir Vclue Cost Foir Value

Short-term investments:
Due in less than one year S - $ - % 2046 $ 2043
Due after one yeor through five years - - 6,014 6,009
Due after five years through ten years 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Due ofter ten years 211,726 211,726 297,475 297,475
Total $216,726 $216,726 $310.535 $310,527

As of September 30, 2007, there were no gross unrealized holding gains and losses.
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6. Client Receivables and Unbilled Work in Pracess
Client receivables and unbilled work in process, net of allowances, at
September 30, 2007 and 2006, consisted of the following:

2007 2006

Client receivables $401,282 $408,638
Unbilled work in process 230,729 213,632
$632,011  $622,270

As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, $4,552 and $10,498, respec-
tively, of long-term unbilled work in process is classified within other
non-current assets, net.

The activity in the client receivable and unbilled work in process
ollowances for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and
2005, consisted of the following:

2007 2006 2005

Balance at beginning of year $ 25,333 $23,922 $21.732
Increase in allowonces 8,667 8,360 15,157
Use of allowances (15,067) (6,949)  (12,967)
Balance at end of year $18,933 $25,333 $23,922

7. Property and Equipment
As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, net property and equipment,
which includes assets under capital leases, consisted of the following:

2007 2006

Property and equipment:

Buildings $ 93,930 § 93397
Capitalized software 311,741 340,613
Computer equipment 283,888 347,081
Telecommunications equipment 136,418 136,086
Furniture and equipment 148,088 134,305
Leasehold improvements 160,354 142,594
Total property and equipment 1,134,419 1,194,076
Less accumulated depreciation

ond amortization (778,512) (782,871)

Balance at end of year $ 355,907 % 411,205

As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, buildings under capital leases
were $88,944,

Long-lived assets with definite useful lives are depreciated or
amortized over their estimated useful lives and are tested for impair-
ment whenever indicators of impairment arise.

During the years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, the Com-
pany evaluated certain long-lived assets for impairment. For the
years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, the Compaony recorded
$13.645and $5.718, respectively, of non-cosh charges related to
the impoirment of capitalized software, shown within goodwill and
asset impairment in the accompanying consclidated statements of
operations and is reflected as o decrease to the gross carrying value
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of the asset. Fiscal 2007 impairment chorges were recorded within
the HR BPQ, Benefits Outsourcing ond Consulting segment results in
the amounts of $9,521, $3,237 and $887, respectively. Fiscal 2006
impairment charges were recorded within the HR BPO segment
results. The impairment charges were primarily due to lower than
expected utilization of certain assets. Fair value wos calculoted
using estimated discounted future cash flows and a third-party vaolu-
ation firm.

For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the
Company recognized depreciation and amortizotion expense on its
property and equipment, which includes assets under capital leases,
of $135,700, $124,240 and $124,37 2, respectively. The Company
recognized $8,166 of accelerated depreciation related to the leased
real estate restructuring activities. Refer to Note 15 for a discussion
on legsed real estate restructuring activities.

8. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
In conformity with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets, the Company tests goodwill for impairment annually or
whenever indicators of impairment arise.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company performed
its annual impairment review of goodwill. This review resulted in an
impairment charge of $279,843 related to the HR BPO segment
recorded as o component of gperating results in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations, due to reduced growth
expectations for the overall business, particlly due to a revised strat-
egy. The reduced growth expectations were driven by a reduction in
the likely number of future engagements and reduced contract value
of each engogement, as we focus on identifying potential customers
seeking a more standardized set of platforms and services. The
impairment charge is non-cash in nature, The Company engoged a
third-party valuation firm to ossist in determining the foir value of
the reporting unit. The veluation was based on estimotes of future
cash flows developed by management. In determining the omount of
goodwill impairment, the Compony also used the outside valuation
firm to assist in valving the significant intangible ossets of the
reparting unit.

During fiscal 2006, the Company performed an interim impair-
ment review of goodwill allocated to its HR BPO segment. This
review was triggered by lower than expected performance of some
of the Company’s HR BPO controcts. This review resulted in a charge
of $172,000 recorded as a component of operating results in the
accompanying consolidated stotements of operotions. The impair-
ment charge was non-cash in nature. The Company engaged a third-
party valuation firm to assist in determining the fair volue of the
reporting unit. The voluation was based on estimates of future cash
flows developed by management. In determining the amount of
goodwill impairment, the Company also used the outside valuation
firm to assist in valuing the significant intangible assets of the
reporting unit. During the year ended September 30, 2005, no good-
will impairments were recognized.
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The following is o summary of changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended September 30, 2007 and 2006:

Benefits

Qutsourcing HR BPO Consulting Total

Balance at September 30, 2005 $ 8,563 3439938 3245869 $694,370
Additions 408 - 6,094 6,502
Adjustment and reclassifications 7,680 (3,737) (7,680) (3.737)
Impairment - (172.000) — {172.000)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 88 4,747 14,952 16,787
Balance at September 30, 2006 16,739 268,948 259,235 544,922
Additions 30,859 - 3,009 33,868
Adjustment and reclassifications - - (12,977) {12,977)
Impairment - (279,843) - (279,843)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 782 10,895 21,667 33,344
Balonce at September 30, 2007 548,380 § - $§270,934 $319,314

The additions to goodwill during the year ended September 30,
2007 primarily related to the acquisition of a benefits management
services provider (Note 4) within the Benefits Outsourcing segment.
The odjustments and reclassifications to goodwill during the
year endgq September 30, 2007 primarily related to a previously
unclgimed tax benefit for share-bused compensotion relating to o
prior-year acquisition within the Consulting segment.

The additions to goodwill during the year ended September 30,
2006 primarily related to the finalizotion of the opening balance
sheet for an acquisition within the Benefits Outsourcing segment
which occurred in the fourth quorter of fiscal 2005 and an acquisi-
tion within the Consulting segment which eccurred in the fourth
guarter of fiscal 2006.

The odjustments and reclassifications to goodwill during the year
ended September 30, 2006 releted to the increase of deferred tax
assets associated with an acquisition (Note 20) and the Company's
decision to shift management oversight for an acquired business
into the Benefits Qutsourcing segment {Note 23).

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are amortized over
their estimated useful lives and are tested for impairment whenever
indicators of impoirment arise.

During the year ended September 30, 2007, the Company evalu-
ated certain intangible assets reloted to the HR BPO and Benefits
Cutsourcing segments for impairment. For the year ended Septem-
ber 30, 2007, the Company recorded $20.879 of nen-cash charges

in the HR BPQ segment results and $4,395 of non-cash charges in
the Benefits Quisourcing results, shown within goodwill and asset
impairment in the accompanying consolidated statements of opera-
tions ond reflected as o decrease to the gross carrying value of the
assets. The impairment charge in the HR BPO segment primarily
related to the impairment of core technology of $18,501, primarily
due to lower than expected utilization of the assets, and also cus-
tomer relationships of $2,028, primarily due tc lower than expected
future cash flows. The impairment charge in the Benefits Qutsourc-
ing segmeant primarily reloted to the impairment of customer relo-
tionships of $3.957, mostly due to lower than expected future cash
flows. Faoir value wos determined using estimated discounted future
cash flows and a third-party valuation firm.

During the year ended September 30, 2006, the Company evalu-
ated certain intangible assets reloted to the HR BPQ segment for
impairment. For the year ended September 30, 2006, $1,705 of
non-cash charges were recorded in the HR BPQ segment results and
shown within goodwill and asset impairment in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and is reflected as a decrease
to the gross carrying value of the asset. The impairment charges are
primarily due to changes in customer contract provisions. Fair value
was determined using estimated discounted future cash flows.

The following is o summary of intangible assets at September 30,
2007 and 2006:

September 30, 2007 September 30, 2006

Gross Gross
Corrying  Accumulated Carrying  Accumuloted
Definite useful life assets Amount Amortization Net Amount  Amortization Net
Trademarks and tradenames $ 15548 $ 14,498 § 1,050 ¢ 14870 $11.647 % 3,223
Core technology 25,499 12,572 12,927 45,309 9,273 36,036
Customer relationships 256,024 73,868 182,156 245,780 42931 202,849
Total $297,071 5$100,938 $196,133  $305,959 $63,851 $242,108
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Amortization expense related to definite-lived intangible assets for
the yeors ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Trademarks and tradenames  $ 1,895 $ 2,694 $ 2,840
Core technology 4,271 4,824 4,434
Customer relationships 27,492 17,222 18,036
Total $33,658 $24,740 $25,310

Applying current foreign exchange rates, estimated amortization
expense related to intangible assets with definite lives ot September
30, 2007, for each of the years in the five-year period ending
September 30, 2012 and thereafter is as follows:

Total
Fiscal year ending:

2008 $ 25.981
2009 15,567
2010 15,388
2011 15,352
2012 14,945
2013 and thereafter 108,900
Total $196,133

9, Other Non-Current Assets, Net
As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, other nan-current assets, net,
consisted of the following:

2007 2006
Other non-current assets, net:

Long-term unbilled work in process $ 4,552 $10,498

Prepaid long-term interest and
service contracts 1,194 7,476
Investments in offiliated companies 20,017 16,982
Prepaid pension asset 6,199 -
Other non-current assets, net $31,962 $34,956

The Company has several prepaid long-term contracts for main-
tenance on computer softwere systems. Benefits reloted to these
long-term prepaid maintenance contracts are received over the
contractual period.

Investments in less than 50%-owned offiliated companies over
which the Company has the ahility to exercise sigaificant influence
but lacks control are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting.

Effective September 30, 2007, the Company adopted SFAS No.
158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit and Other Postretire-
ment Plans. As o result of adopting SFAS No. 158, the Compony hos
oggregated all its over-funded retirement plons and classified the
amount at September 30, 2007 as a non-current asset within the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Prior to adoption, the
over-funded amounts were included with pension liabilities within
other non-current liahilities, For further discussion on our retirement
plans and adoption of SFAS No. 158, see Note 1 and Note 16.
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10, Short-Term Debt

As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, the Company had short-term
debt outstanding of $30,369 und $32,246, respectively, consisting
of borrawings on unsecured lines of credit.

Unsecured Lines of Credit

As port of the 2005 merger with Exult, the Company assumed a
domestic unsecured revolving line of credit facility which provided
for borrowings up to $25,000 and expired on July 31, 2005. Borrow-
ings under the facility occrued interest at LIBOR plus 212.5 basis
points or a base rate. On January 25, 2005, the Company replaced
the facility with o $25,000 unsecured revolving line of credit fucility
which provides for borrowings up to $25,000 expiring on October 1,
2007. Borrowings under this facility occrue interest ot LIBOR plus
52.5-72.5 basis points or o base rate. On September 26, 2007, the
Company replaced the facility with 0 $19,500 unsecured revolving
line of credit facility which provides for barrowings up to $19,500
expiring on September 30, 2008, Borrowings under this focility
ocerue interest at LIBOR plus 30.0-60.0 basis points or a bose rate.
The Company had borrowings of $13,345 and $19,559 accruing
interest at a weighted average rate of 6.866% and 6.41% at
September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

On May 23, 2005, the Company entered into o five-yeor credit
focility, with a six-bank syndicate, that provides for borrowings up to
$200,000. This facility replaced a three-year facility that was sched-
uled to expire on September 27, 2005. Borrowings under the new
facility accrue interest at LIBOR plus 30-60 bosis points or the
prime rate, at our option, Borrowings are repayable upon demand or
at expiration of the facility on May 23, 2010. Quarterly facility fees
ranging from 7.5-15 basis points are chorged on the average deily
commitment under the facility. At September 30, 2007 and 2006,
there were no borrowings ouistanding against the new facility.

Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow Ltd., the Company's U.K. subsidiary,
hod an unsecured British pound sterling line of credit. In July 2005,
the line of credit wos amended and extended to allow for barrowings
up to £5,000 until the expirgtion of the facility on July 31, 2006. The
agreement was amended in July 2006 to extend the facility to Octo-
ber 31, 2006, all terms remained unchanged. The expiration for this
facility has been extended to October 30, 2007. This facility expired
on October 30, 2007 and the Company is in the process of extending
the facility. The interest rate for this facility is LIBOR plus 87.5 basis
points. As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, the interest rotes on the
line of credit were 7.069% and 5.77 5%, respectively, and there was
no outstanding balance ot either date.

The Company has a contract with a lender to guarantee borrow-
ings of its subsidiaries up to $20,500 in multiple currency loans and
letters of credit. There is no fixed termination dote on this contract.
This controct allows the Company’s foreign subsidiaries to secure
financing at rotes based on the Company’s creditworthiness. The
contract was signed August 31, 2004, and $3,476 of the facility is
avoilable for the Company's foreign offices and bonk facilities. The
facility provides for borrowings at LIBOR plus 75 bosis points. As of
September 30, 2007 ond 2006, there were borrowings of $17.024
and $12,687, respectively.
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11. Debt
Debt at September 30, 2007 and 2006, consisted of the following:

2007 2006
Term loan credit facility $ 8122 §$ 9362
Capital lease obligations 72,910 76,580
Unsecured convertible senior term notes 106,080 104,805
Unsecured senior term notes 70,000 98,000
Other foreign debt 575 847
257,687 289,594
Current portion of long-term debt

and capital lease obligations 24,222 34,742

Debt and copital lease obligations,
less current portion $233,465 $254,852

The principal portion of long-term debt excluding capital lease obli-
gations and net of discount on unsecured convertible senior term
notes at September 30, 2007 becomes due as follows:

Fiscal year ending:

2008 $ 19,530
2009 9,079
2010 19,054
2011 130,114
2012 7,000

Total $184,777

Varigus debt ogreements call for the maintenance of specified finan-
cial ratios, among other restrictions. At September 30, 2007 and
2006, the Compeny waos in compliance with afl debt covenants.

Term Loan Credit Focility

On December 22, 2004, Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow Ltd., the Com-
pany’s U.K. subsidiary, entered into @ £6 million term loan credit
facility agreement. The loan is repayable in 24 quarterly install-
ments through December 2010 and accrues interest at LIBOR plus
80 basis points. At September 30, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding
balunce of the term loon was approximately £4 million or $8,122
and £5 million or $9,362, respectively. and was accruing interest at
7.1625% and 5.9525%, respeciively.
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Other Foreign Debt

Other foreign debt outstanding at September 30, 2007 and 2006
totaled $575 and $847, respectively, pursuant to local banking
relationships.

Unsecured Convertible Senior Term Notes

In connection with the Company's merger with Exult, the Company
became obligated for $110,000 aggregate principal amount of
2.50% Convertible Senior Notes due October 1, 2010. The notes rank
equally with all of Hewitt’s existing ond future senior unsecured debt
and will be effectively subordinated to all liabilities of each of its
subsidiaries. The Company recorded the notes at their estimated fair
value of $102,300 as of October 1, 2004 and is accreting the value
of the discount over the remaining term of the notes to their stated
maturity vafue using a method that approximates the effective inter-
est method. As of September 30, 2007 and 2006, the carrying value
on the notes wos $106,080 and $104,805, respectively, resulting in
an unamortized discount of $3,920 and $5.195, respectively.

The notes are convertible into shares of Hewitt Class A common
stock at any time bhefore the ctose of business on the date of their
maturity, unless the notes have previously been redeemed or repur-
chased, if {1) the price of Hewitt’s Class A common stack issuable
upon conversion of a note reaches o specified threshold, (2) the
notes are called for redemption, (3} specified corporate transactions
occur or (4) the trading price of the notes falls below certain thresh-
olds. The conversion rate is 17.0068 shares of Hewitt Class A
common stock per each $1,000 principal amount of notes, subject
to adjestment in certain circumstances. This is equivalent to a con-
version price of approximately $58.80 per share. Based upon
the $58.80 conversion price, the notes would be convertible into
1,870,748 shares of Hewitt Class A common stock.

On or after October 5, 2008, Hewitt has the option to redeem all or
a portion of the notes that have not been previously converted or
repurchased at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount
of the notes plus accrued interest ond liquidated damuages owed, if
any, to the redemption date. Holders have the option, subject to cer-
tain conditions, to require Hewitt to repurchase any notes held by
the holder on October 1, 2008 or upon a change in control, af o price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the notes plus accrued
interest and liquidated domages owed, if any, to the date of purchase.




Unsecured Senior Term Notes

Hewitt Associates, Inc.

The unsecured senior term notes were issued te various financial institutions consisting primarily of insurance companies. The terms and

balances of the unsecured senior term notes are as follows:

Balance ot Interest  September 30, Sepiember 30,
Terms Issuance Rate 2007 2006
Issued July 7, 2000, repayable on June 30, 2007 $ 15,000 7.93% 3 - $15,000
Issued March 30, 2000, repayable in five annua! installments
beginning March 2003 through March 2007 15,000 7.94% - 3,000
Issued May 30, 1996, repayable in five annual installments
beginning May 2004 through May 2008 20,000 7.45% 10,000 20,000
Issued July 7, 2000, repayable on June 30, 2010 10,000 8.11% 10,000 10,000
Issued on October 16, 2000, repayable on October 15, 2010 15,000 7.90% 15,000 15,000
Issued on March 30, 2000, repayable in five annual installments
beginning March 2008 through March 2012 35,000 8.08% 35,000 35,000
$140,000 $70,000 $98,000

12. Lease Agreements

The Company has cbligations under long-term, non-cancelable lease
agreements, principally for office space, furniture ond equipment,
with terms ranging from one to twenty years. Prior to May 20, 2005,
some of the leases were with related parties (Note 13}. At September
30, 2007 and 2006, all leases are with third parties.

Caopital Leases
Capital lease obligations at September 30, 2007 and 2006, con-
sisted of the following:

2007 2006

Building capital leases $72,123 $76,213
Computer and telecommunications

equipment copital leases 787 367

72,910 76.580

Current portion 4,692 4,286

Copital lease obligations,
less current portion 468,218 $72.294

The following is o schedule of minimum future rental payments
required as of September 30, 2007, under capital leases which have
an initial or remaining non-cancelable lease term in excess of one
year:

Copital Leoses; Principol Interest Total
Fiscal year ending:
2008 % 4,692 $ 5103 % 9,795
2009 5,459 4,750 10,209
2010 5,850 4,356 10,246
2011 6,509 3,918 10,427
2012 7,151 3,430 10,581
2013 and thereafter 43,209 7.912 51,121
Total minimum
lease paoyments $72,910 $29.469 3102379

Building Capital Leases

The Norwatk, Connecticut and Newport Beach, California capital
leases are payable in monthly installments at 7.33% interest and
expire in April 2017 and May 2017, respectively. The leases provide
for stepped rents over the leose term with the aption for two renewal
terms of five years each. The copitalized leases and the related copi-
tal lease obligotions were recorded ot lease inception and the capi-
talized lecse assets are being omortized over the remaining lease
term on a straight-line basis. The terms of the Norwalk lease also
provide the Company with a right of first refusal on sale if the land-
lord receives an offer for the sale of the building. In April 2007, the
Company entered into a sublease ogreement for the Norwaik lease.
Minimum sublease rentols to be received in the future under the
sublease are $26,681 at September 30, 2007.

Computer and Telecommunications Equipment Capital Leases

The Company's computer and telecommunications equipment
installment notes and capitolized leases are secured by the related
equipment and are payohle typically over three to five years in
monthly or quarterly installments at an interest rate of 5.0%.

Operating Leases

The Company also has various third-party operating leases for office
space, furniture and equipment with terms ranging from one to
twenty years. The Company has various office leases that grant a
free rent period and have escolating rents. Certain office leases
include landlord incentives for leasehold improvements. Landlord
incentives are recognized as o reduction to rental expense over the
term of the lease. The accompanying consolidated stotements of
operations reflect rent expense on a stroight-line basis recognized
over the term of the leases. The difference between straight-line
basis rent and the amount paid has been recorded as accrued lease
ohligations. The Company also has leases that have lease renewal
pravisions. As of September 30, 2007, all operating leases outstand-
ing were with third parties.
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The following is a schedule of minimum future rental commit-
ments as of September 30, 2007, under operating leases with an ini-
tiol or remaining non-cancelable lease term in excess of one year:

Operating Leases: Total

Fiscal year ending:
2008 $ 95,355
2009 88,561
2010 80,106
2011 74,180
2012 67,349
2013 and thereafter 316,676
Total minimum leose payments 722,227
Total anticipated future sublease receipts (31,140)
$691,087

Totol rental expense for operating leases amounted to $106,092,
$99.266 and $106,341 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

13. Related Party Transactions

Prior to fiscal 2006, the Company leased real property in Lin-
colnshire, lllinois, The Woodlands, Texas ond Orfando, Florida from
FORE Holdings LLC, the former parent company and related party,
and its subsidiaries, Hewitt Properties I LLC, Hewitt Properties |1
LLC, Hewitt Properties IH LLC, Hewitt Properties [V LLC, and Hewitt

Properties VII LLC, The Bayview Trust ond Overlook Associotes
(o farmer equity method investment of FORE Holdings). During the
fiscat years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, the Company
was not o party to any refated party leases.

In May 2005, FORE Holdings sold the majority of its properties to
a third party. Upon closing of the sale, Hewitt Associates LLC, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into amended
lease agreements with the third party. Under the omended leases,
rent and lease terms remained the some. Hewitt Associates LLC
agreed to two debt covenants {minimum net worth and leverage
ratio} identical to those that exist on the Company’s unsecured sen-
ior term notes and Hewitt Associates LLC also waived a purchase
option right with respect to the properties sold and ane other prop-
erty. In exchonge for the amended terms, Hewitt Associates received
$3.000 in consideration from FORE Holdings. The $3,000 will
reduce the Company's rent expense related to the properties over the
remaining lease terms which run through March 2020.

Total legse payments to these entities were $23,988 in 2005. The
leases were entered into on terms camparable to those which could
have been obtained in an arm's length transaction. The investment in
these properties was funded through capital contributions by FORE
Holdings and third-party debt. This debt was not reflected on the
Company’s balance sheet as it was an obligation of FORE Holdings
and its related parties, and not an obligation of the Company. The
Company does not guarantee the debt related to these properties.

14. Severance Accruol

During fiscal 2007, the Company implemented several productivity
initiatives across the business that resulted in a reduction in work-
force, The Company’'s severance policy provides that the affected
employees will receive an amount of severance pay that is bosed on
the employee’s length of service, current employment stotus and
level and benefits elections. For certain affected employees outside
of the United States, the amount of severance is based upen the
requirements of lacal regulations. As of September 30, 2007, the

Company has estimated its severance obligations to be $10,661 in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
112 (as Amended), Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Bene-
fits—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 5 and 43.The Company
recorded charges of $10,033 in the fourth quarter and made poy-
ments of $181 related to those charges.

The following toble summaorizes the activity in the severance
occrual for the year ended September 30, 2007:

October, September 30,
2006 Additions Payments Adjustments 2007
Severance accrual $— $36,221 $(21,226) $(4,334) $10,661

The Company anticipates that the remaining accrual will be paid out
by the end of fiscal 2008.

15. Restructuring Activities

In conjunction with an ongoing review of the Company’s leased real
estote portfolio, during the third quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company
announced its intention to consolidate facilities, and in some cases,
exit certain properties. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, the
Company recorded expense of $17,777 related ta the exit and con-
solidation of certoin facilities in both the U.S. and international loca-
tions. The charges consisted of $21,649 for recognition of the fair

h6

value of lease vacancy obligations and lease termination charges.
This was offset by the reversal of accrued rents of $3,872. The net
costs were recorded in other operoting expense within the consoli-
dated statements of operations and charged to the Benefits Out-
sourcing, HR BPO and Consuilting segments in the amounts of
$13,469,%3.082 and $1,226, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the activity in the restructuring reserves for the year ended September 30, 2007:

Octoberl, September 30,

2006 Additions Payments 2007

Real estate lease restructuring $— $21,649 $(762) $20,887
The Company anticipates that the remaining accrual will be poidout  Defined Benefit Plans

by fiscal 2018.

[n connection with the 2005 Exult merger, the Company formu-
lated facility exit and severance strategies. The Company recorded
$13,721 of estimated liobilities for costs related to Exult focilities
consolidation, the related impact on Exult outstanding real estate
leases and Exult involuntory employee terminations and relocations.
The accrued obligation was $3,132 and $3,608 as of September 30,
2007 and 2006, respectively. All severance amounts have been paoid
out as of September 30, 2006, Lease termination costs are expected
to be paid by October 2011.

16. Retirement Plans

Employee 401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan

The Company has a qualified 401(k) ond profit sharing plan far its
eligible employees. Under the plan, Hewitt makes annual contribu-
tions equal to o percentage of participants’ total cash compensation
and may maoke additional contributions in accordance with the
terms of the plan. Additionally, employees may make contributions
inaccordance with the terms of the plan, with a portion of those con-
tributions maiched by the Company. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, profit
sharing plan and company match contributicn expenses were
$58.179, $53,617 and $41.715, respectively. '

Through various acquisitions, the Company hos defined benefit pen-
sion plans, the largest of which was closed to new entronts in 1998,
providing retirement benefits to eligible employees. The Company
also has other smaller defined benefit pension plons to provide
benefits to eligible employees. 1t is the Company’s policy to fund in
accordance with local practice and legislation.

Health Care Plans

The Company provides health benefits for retired employees and
certgin dependents when the employee becomes eligible for these
benefits by satisfying plan provisions which include certain age and
service requirements. The health benefit plans covering substan-
tially all U.S. and Canadion employees are contributory, with contri-
butions reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. These plans
contain other cost-sharing features such os deductibles and coinsur-
ance. The Company does not pre-fund these plans and has the right
to modify or terminate any of these plans in the future.

Effective September 30, 2007, the Company adopted SFAS
No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit and Other Post-
retirement Plans. See Note 2 for the incremental effects of the initial
adoption of SFAS No. 158 on our consolidated balance sheet at
September 30, 2007.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the defined benefit and health care plons’ benefit obligations and fair value of
assets for the years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, and o statement of funded stotus as of September 30, 2007 and 2006.

Pension Benefits

Health Benefits

2007 2006 2007 2006
Chanrge in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation, beginning of yeor $182,707 $169,151 $ 13,638 § 17,661
Acquisitions - 392 - -
Service cost 12,078 11,028 155 9
Interest cost 9,293 7.494 852 716
Plan amendments - {537) - (3.153)
Remeasurement - {710) - -
Actuarial (gains)/losses (5,453) (10,948) {321) (984)
Benefit payments (7,115) (2.159) (611) (611)
Settlement payment (31) (1,352) - -
Changes in foreign exchange rates 20,154 10,348 - -
Benefit obligation end of year $211,633 $182,707 $ 13,713  § 13,638
Change in Plon Assets
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $151,553 $121848 § - 4 -
Actual return on plan ossets 14,214 10,058 - —
Employer contribution 19,693 15,906 611 611
Benefit payments (7,115) {2,159) (611) (611)
Settlement payment (31) {1,352) - -
Changes in foreign exchange rates 15,275 7.252 - -
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $193,589 $151553 § - % -
Reconciliation of Accrued Obligation and Total Amount Recognized
Unfunded status® $(18,044) $(31.154) §(13,713) $(13.638)
Unrecognized net loss - 8.324 - 5.007
Unrecognized prior service cost - (533) - 23
Unrecognized transition obligation - — - 2
Net amount recognized, end of year $(18,044) $(23,363) $(13,713) § (8.606)
Amounts recorded in other comprehensive income, pre-tax:
Prior service cost $711 % - 5 20 § -
Net octuoria! (gain} loss {2,465) — 4,459 -
Tronsition obligation - - 2 -
Total $ (1,754) 3 — 5 4481 % -

“IFair value of assets less projected benefit obligation, shown in the preceding tables.
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After the udoption of SFAS No. 158, the amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2007 consisted of:

Pension Health

Benefits Benefits
Other non-current ossets, net $ 6,199 § -
Accrued expenses (2,725) (699)
Other non-current liabilities (21,518)  (13,014)
Net amount recagnized $(18,044) $(13,713)

At September 30, 2007, the above recognized unfunded status of
pension plans determined using a June 30, 2007 measurement date
was reduced by $2,060 primarily due to employer contributions
made during the fourth quarter.

Hewitt Associates, [nc.

Relating to the pension plans, the estimated net loss, prior service
cost and transition obligation that will be amortized from sharehold-
ers’ equity into pension cost in fiscal 2008 are $(24), $92 and zero,
respectively. Comparable amounts amortized in fiscal 2007, respec-
tively, were $229, $92 and zero.

Relating to the health benefit plans, the estimated net loss, prior
service cost and transition obligation that will be amartized from
shareholders’ equity into pension cost in fiscal 2008 are $172, $2
and zero, respectively. Comparable amounts amortized in fiscal
2007, respectively, were $246, $2 and zero.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the pension plans was
$185,044 and $159,607 as of September 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

The assumptions used in the measurement of our benefit obligations at June 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Pension Benefits Health Benefits

2007 2006 2007 2006
Weighted avernge assumptions:
Discount rate 5.35% 4.85% 6.40% 6.00%
Expected return on plan assets 6.20% 577% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase 4.13% 3.85% N/A N/A

The assumptions used in the measurement of our net benefit costs for the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Pension Benefits Health Benefits

2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Weighted average assumptions:
Discount rate 4.85% 4,39% 5.23% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00%
Expected return on plan assets 5.77% 5.26% 5.99% N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase 3.89% 3.54% 3.73% N/A N/A N/A

The health plan provides flat dollar credits based on years of service
and age at retirement. Service for determining credits was frozen as
of December 31, 2005. The amendment to the plan resulted ina
$3,153($2.7 28 decrease to the unrecognized prior service cost and
$425 decrease to the unrecognized transition obligation) decrease
in the occumulated postretirement benefit obligation during 2006.
There is a small group of grandfathered retirees who receive postre-
tirement medical caverage at a percentage of cost. The liabilities for
these retirees ore valued ossuming o 9.5% health care cost trend
rate for 2007. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 6.0%
in 2014 ond remain at that level thereafter.

The effect of a one percentage point increase or decrease in the
assumed health care cost trend rates on total service and interest

costs and the postretirement henefit obligation are provided in the
following toble.

2007 2006
Effect of 1% Change in the Assumed
Health Care Cost Trend Rates
Effect of 19 increase on:
Totol of service and interest
cost components $ 3 $ 3
Benefit obligations 45 52
Effect of 1% decrease on:
Total of service and interest
cost components $ (3) $ (3
Benefit obligotion (42) (49)
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The Company's pension plan weighted average asset allocations at
Septemher 30, 2007 and 2006, by asset category are as follows:

Asset Category 2007 2006
Equity securities 49.51% 47.44%
Debt securities 45.88% 45.86%
Real estate 3.57% 3.39%
Other 1.04% 3.31%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

The investment objectives for the pension plan assets are to gener-
ate returns that will enable the plons to meet their future obligations.

plan assets in equity securities and debt securities, respectively. The
total return is tracked to the relevant market index, within specified
tolerances and efter allowance for withholding tox where applica-
ble, for each of the funds in which the assets are invested. The plan
assets for the Switzerland plan are managed in accordance with the
laws in Switzerland. Within the scope of the Swiss lows, the strategy
targets equity securities of 35%-45%, debt securities of 35%-65%,
real estate investments of 5%-15% and other investments of
0%-5%.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future
service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

The strategies balance the requirement to generate returns through gsgz;iz B:::fllttz
investments such os equity securities, with the need te control risk
through less volatile assets such as fixed income securities, while 3882 § 2?28 $ '6/2?
also meeting local regulations. Approximately 90% of the Com- 2010 5,006 740
pany's plan assets relate to the Company’s pension plans in the 2011 5’460 748
United Kingdem and Switzerland. In the United Kingdom, the plan 2012 5'531 735
assets are munaged in two separate portfolios, an equity portfolio ’
and a bond portfolio. The strategy is to invest 56% and 44% of the Years 2013 through 2017 38,109 3.999
The components of net periodic benefit costs for the three years ended September 30,
Pension Benefits Health Benefits
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost
Service cost $12,078 $11,028 $ 9,854 $ 155 $ 9 $1,267
Interest cost 9,293 7,494 8.331 852 716 791
Expected return on plon assets (9,090) (6,748) {(6.738) - - -
{Gain) loss recognized in the year 322 (15) 4 - - -
Loss on settiement - 86 - - - -
Amortization of:

Unrecognized prior service cost 92 (20) - 2 2 199

Unrecognized loss 229 552 155 246 283 115

Transition obligation - - - - - 33
Net periodic benefit cost $12,924 $12,377 $11.606 $1,255 $1,010 $2,405

The Company presently anticipates contributing approximately
$19.426 to fund its pension plans and $699 to fund its health
benefit plans in fiscal 2008. The Compony does not expect any
plan assets to be returned to the Company during fiscal 2008.

17. Share-Based Compensation Plans

On October 1, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS 123(R), “Share-
Based Payment” (*SFAS 123(R)") using the modified prospective
method. Upon the adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company recog-
nized an immaterial one-time gain in compensation and related
expenses reloted to the requirement to apply an estimated forfeiture
rate to unvested awards. Previously, the Company recorded forfei-
tures as incurred. The Company also elected to recognize the com-
pensation cost of alt shore-bosed awards on o stroight-line basis
over the vesting period of the award. Under SFAS 123(R), benefits of
tox deductions in excess of recognized compensation expense are
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now reported os a financing cash flow, rather than an operoting cash
flow as prescribed under the prior accounting rules.

Prior to October 1, 2005, the Company applied Accounting Princi-
ples Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ-
ees,” (*APB 25”) to account for its stock-based compensation plans.
Under APB 25, no compensation expense was recognized for non-
qualified stock option awards os the exercise price of the awards on
the date of grant was equal to the current market price of the Com-
pony's stock. However, the Company did recognize compensation
expense in connection with the issuance of restricted stock and
restricted stock units. The adoption of SFAS 123(R) primarily
resulted in compensation expense being recorded for stock options.

During the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the
Company recorded pre-tox shore-boased compensation expense of
$40,937, $55,007 and $26,199, respectively, reloted to expensing
of the Company’s nongualified stock options, restricted stock and




restricted stock units. During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, the
Company reduced share-based compensation expense by $4,505
related to adjustments to the forfeiture rate used to record share-
bosed compensation.

For the years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, the excess
tax benefits of $4,912 and $1,084, respectively, were reflected as
cosh flow from financing activities in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, The total compensation cost related to non-vested
restricted stock and stock option awards not yet recognized os
of September 30, 2007 was approximately $63,083, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average of 2.4 years.

Results for fiscal 2005 have not been restated to reflect the adop-
tion of SFAS 123(R). Hod compensation expense for the Company’s
stack options been determined based on the foir value method of
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and apply-
ing the Black-Scholes valuation method, net income and earnings
per share for the year ended September 30, 2005 would have been
as follows:

Year Ended September 30, 2005

Net income:
As reported $134,732
Reported share-based compensation
expense, net of tax 17,259
Proforma share-bosed compensation
expense, net of tox (45,077)
Pro forma net income $106,914
Net income per share—basic:
As reported $ 121
Pro forma $ 096
Net income per share—diluted:
As reported $ 119
Pro forma $ 095

Under the Company’s Global Stock and Incentive Compensation
Plan (the “Plan”™), which wos odopted in fiscal 2002 and is adminis-
tered by the Compensation and Leadership Committee (the “Com-
mittee”) of the Company’s Board of Directors, employees and
directors moy receive awards of nonqualified stock options, stock
gppreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, perfarm-
ance shares, performonce share units and cosh-bosed owards;
employees can also receive incentive stock options. As of September
30, 2007, only restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance
share units and nonqualified stock options have been granted. A
total of 25,000,000 shares of Class A common stock have been
reserved for issuance under the Plan. As of September 30, 2007,
there were 2,810,954 shores avoilable for grant under the Plan.

Hewitt Associotes, Inc.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

On December 1, 2006, the Company granted 2,152,645 shares of
restricted stock units at o price of $25.24, which vest over four
years. Also on December 1, 2006, the Company granted 115,000
restricted stack units at o price of $25.24 which vest on September
30. 2009 upon meeting certoin fiscal year 2007 financial perform-
ance conditions. During 2007, an additional 323,707 shares of
restricted stock units were granted at a weighted overage price of
$28.01, which vest from one to four years.

Qn October 3, 2005, the Campany granted 2,282,190 shares of
restricted stock and restricted stock units at a price of $27.59, which
vest from two to four years. During the year ended September 30,
2006, an additionol 1,031,490 shares of restricted stock and
restricted stock units were granted at a weighted average price of
$23.71. Included in the fiscal 2006 gronts were 186,111 restricted
stock owards which vest upon meeting certain financial perform-
ance conditions as of September 30, 2008, The maojority of these
shares vest evenly through July 1, 2009, and portions of the awards
vest through July 1, 2007 and July 1, 2008. In the year ended Sep-
tember 30, 2005, the Company granted 735,249 restricted stock
and restricted stock units at a weighted average grant price of
$26.92. These shares vested on July 1, 2006.

In connection with the 2005 Exult merger, the Company granted
692,139 shares of Class A unvested restricted stock and restricted
stock units to certain Exult employees. These awards were valued ot
$18,535 on the October 1, 2004 grant date (o price of $26.78 per
share). This amount was recorded as unearned compensation and
was expensed ratably through the vesting date of june 27, 2006.

Shares which vest upon meeting certain financial performance
conditions assume that goals will be achieved. The goals are evalu-
ated quarterly. If such geals are not met or it is probable the goals
will not be met, no compensation cost is recognized and any recog-
nized compensation cost is reversed. During fiscal year 2006, the
Company evaluated the goals under the fiscal 2006 performance
plan and it was determined that it was probable that the gools would
not be met. As a result, the expense previously recognized in con-
junction with the performance plan was reversed in fiscal 2006. The
plan remains in existence and as such, the Company will continue io
monitor the results to ossess whether a payout would be probable.

In connection with its initial public offering, the Company granted
5,789,908 shares of Class A restricted stock and restricted stock
units to employees. The one-time initiol public offering-related
awards were valued at $110,141 on the June 27, 2002 grant dote (a
weighted price of $19.02 per share) and fully vested during the year
ended September 30, 2006, For the years ended September 30,
2006 and 2005, compensation expense for the initial public offering
restricted stock awords was $9,397 and $17.355, respectively,
including the award compensation expense and applicable payroll
toxes for the respective periods.
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The following table summarizes restricted stock and restricted stock units activity during 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005

Restricted Restricted Restricted
Stack/ Weighted- Stock/ Weighted- Stock/ Weighted-
Restricted Average Restricted Average Restricted Average
Stock Units Foir Value Stock Units Fair Value Stack Units Fair Value
Shares gutstanding at beginning of fiscal year 2,370,858 $25.95 1,316,942 $22.38 1,626,000 $19.05
Granted 2,591,352 25.59 3,313,680 26.38 795,084 26.88
Vested (1,228,320) 26.03 (1.912,794) 24.21 {857,673) 19.67
Farfeited (598,068) 25.93 (346,970) 26.18 (246,469) 24.37
Shares outstanding at end of fiscal year 3,135,822 $25.62 2,370.858 $2595 1,316,942 $22.38

Stock Options

The Committee may grant both incentive stack options and nongual-
ified stock options to purchose shares of Class A commaon stock. Sub-
ject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, options may be granted
to porticipanis in such number, and upon such terms, as determined
by the Committee, provided that incentive stock options maoy not be
granted to non-employee directors. The option price is determined
by the Committee, provided thot for options issued to participants in
the United States, the option price may not be less than 100% of the
fair market value of the shares on the date the option is grunted and
no option may be exercisable later than the tenth anniversary of its
grant. The nonqualified stock options granted vest ratably over a
period of four years. As of September 30, 2007, the Company has
7,611,095 optians outstanding with a weighted average exercise
price of $24.12,

The fair value used to determine compensation expense for the
years ended September 30, 2007 and 2006 was estimated at the
date of grant using o Black-Scholes option pricing model with the
following weighted average assumptions:

2007 2006
Expected volatility 28.15% 28.89%
Risk-free interest rate 4.42% 4.73%
Expected life 6.23 5.68
Dividend yield 0% 0%

The Compaony did not grant any stock options in the year ended
September 30, 2005.

The foltowing table summarizes stock option activity during 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007

2006 2005

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Averoge Weighted-Averoge

Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price

Qutstanding at beginning of fiscal year 9,664,292 $23.73 10,364,866 $23.75 11,212,831 $23.71
Gronted 937,650 25.66 331.600 22.80 - —
Exercised (2,377,618) 22.78  (647,740) 22.44  (445,528) 22.14
Forfeited (197,847) 2495  (183,863) 2423 (364,274) 24.63
Expired (415,382) 25.79  (200,571) 26.49 {38.163) 23.27
Outstanding at end of fiscal year 7,611,095 $24.12 9,664,292 $23.73 10,364,866 $23.75
Exercisable options at end of fiscal year 6,758,976 $23.94 8,677,556 $23.66 7,874,066 $24.01

The weighted averoge estimated foir value of employee stock
options granted during 2007 and 2006 was $9.74 and $8.49 per
share, respectively. These stock options were granted at exercise
prices equal to the current fair market value of the underlying stock.

Outstanding Options

The Company did not grant options in the year ended September 30,
2005. The following table summarizes information about stock
options outstanding ot September 30, 2007.

Exercisable Options

Number Weighted-Average Aggregate  Weighted-Average Number  Weighted-Average Aggregote

Reasonable price range groupings: ~ Qutstonding Exercise Price  Intrinsic Value Term (Yeors) Qutstanding Exercise Price  Intrinsic Value
$19.00 1,804,040 $19.00 $28,955 4.7 1,804,040 $19.00 $28,955
$19.01-%$30.00 5,727,816 25.54 54,448 6.7 4,899,147 25.66 46,016
$30.01-$35.00 79,239 32.12 232 6.9 55,789 32.37 150
7,611,095 $24.12 $83.635 6.3 6,758,976 $23.94 $75121
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The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended
September 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, based upon the average mar-
ket price during the period, was approximately $18,027, $3,426
and $2.925, respectively.

18. Legal Proceedings

The Company is involved in disputes arising in the ordinary course of
its business relating to Qutsourcing or Consulting agreements, pro-
fessional liability claims, vendors or service providers or employ-
ment claims. We are also routinely cudited and subject te inquiries
by governmental and regulatory ogencies. The Company evaluotes
estimated losses under SFAS 5, Accounting for Contingencies. Man-
agement considers such factors os the probability of an unfavorable
outcome and the ability to make o reosonable estimate of the
amount of loss and records o provision with respect to a claim, suit,
investigation or proceeding when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and the amount of the loss can reasonably be esti-
mated. If the reasonoble estimate of o probable loss is a range, and
no amount within the range is o better estimote, the minimum
amount in the range is accrued. I[f aloss is not probable or a probable
loss cannot be reasonaobly estimated, no liability is recorded.

19, Other Comprehensive Income, Net

Hewitt Associates, Inc.

The Company is in active discussions with o number of HR BPO
clients to renegotiate the terms of their contracts. Through Septem-
her 30, 2007, the Company has recorded a $15 million contingent
liability related to an ongoing dispute with one of these clients.

The Company does nat believe that any unresolved disputes will
have o material adverse effect on its financiol condition or results of
operation. However, litigation in general and the outcome of any
matter in particular cannot be predicted with certainty. An unfavor-
able resolution of one or more pending matters could have a mate-
rial adverse impact onthe Company's results of operations for one or
more reporting periods.

On May 8, 2007, the House Committee on Oversight and Govern-
ment Reform chaired by Henry A. Waxman issued letters to the
Company and five other executive compensation consuiting firms
requesting that they identify all Fortune 250 componies for which
they provided both executive compensation consulting services and
other services during the post five years and disclose annual revenue
for each of those two categories for the year 2002 through 2006.
The Company has been responding to the requests and continues to
cooperote with the Committee.

Accumulated other comprehensive income consists of the following components:

Foreign Currency

Unrealized Accumulated Cther

Translation Minimum Guins {Losses) Adoption of Comprehensive

Adjustment Pension Liability on Investments SFAS No. 158 Income

As of September 30, 2004 $ 69,050 $ - $ - $ - $ 69,050

Other comprehensive income (loss) 3,270 (2,397) (135) - 738

As of September 30, 2005 72,320 (2,397) {135) — 69,788

Other comprehensive income 2,760 2397 127 - 5,284

As of September 30, 2006 75,080 - (8) - 75,072

Other comprehensive income 49,827 - 8 - 49,835
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158 (net of tox) - - - (1,525) {1,525)

As of September 30, 2007% $124,907 S - S - $(1,525) $123,382

DNet of $42,922 of taxes,

The change in foreign currency translation during the year ended
September 30, 2007 was primarily related to the changes in value of
the British pound sterling and [ndian rupee relative to the U.S. dollor.

The change in foreign currency translation during the year ended
September 30, 2006 and 2005 were primarily related to changes in
the value of the British pound sterling relative to the U.5. dollar.

20. Income Taxes

For the years ended September 30, 2007, 2006 end 2005, the Company’s provision for income taxes aggregated $50.362, $56,368 and

$85,783, respectively, and consisted of the following:

2007 2006 2005
Current Deferred Total Current Deferred Total Current Deferred Total
U.S. Federal $55,088 5 (5,961) 549,127 $24,228 $ 2,570 $26,798 $(4.825) $79.236 $74.411
State and local 10,976 (6,474) 4,502 6,620 (935) 5,685 1,215 5,648 6,863
Foreign 2,232 (5,499) (3,267) 5,765 18,120 23,885 7,675 (3.166) 4,509
$68,296  $(17,934)  $50,362 $36,613 $19,755 $56,368 $ 4,065 $81.718 $85,783

53



Tax benefit gssociated with the vesting of restricted stock and
restricted stock units ond the exercise of nonqualified stock options
were credited directly to additional paid-in capital and amounted to
$9.535,$191 and $3,204 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The effective income tax rate for the year ended September 30,
2007 was 40.4% os compared to 94.6% in fiscal 2006. The cur-
rent year's effective rate was impacted by o number of significant
items including o non-deductible goodwill impairment charge, tax
reserves ond related interest as well as a reduction of deferred tax
assets related to foreign entities. The impact of these significant
items was to reduce the rate by a net 54.2%. [n addition, the Com-
pany added $8,421 of deferred tax assets gssociated with acqui-
sitions. This deferred tox osset was recorded as o reduction to
goodwill.

Income tax expense for the period differed from the amounts com-
puted by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% to income
before taxes as a result of the following:

2007 2006 2005

(Benefit) provision for toxes

at U.S. federal statutory rate $(43,651)  $(20,850)  $77.180
Increase (reduction) in
income taxes resulting from:
Goodwill impairment at
U.S. federal stotutory rate 88,717 58,665 -
Reduction of deferred
tox assets related to
foreign entities (5,499) 18,343 -
Reserves and reloted interest 9,237 (4,238) -
State and local income taxes,
net of federal income
tax benefits 2,138 3.432 3,733
Non-deductible expenses 3,672 2838 2,018
Tax impoct on fareign
subsidiaries (2,843) (4,793) 1,893
Other (1,409) 2,971 959
$50,362 $56,368 $85,783

St

The tox effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant
portions of the deferred tox assets and deferred tax liobilities ore
presented below:

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Deferred contract revenues $101,358 § 72,782
Accrued expenses 8,794 7,167
Foreign tax loss carryforwards 44,322 41,680
Foreign accrued expenses 6,389 4,570
Oepreciation and amortization 11,113 -
Compensaotion and benefits 24,223 28,550
Domestic tox loss carryforwards 29,321 44,117
Other 2,849 735
228,369 199,601
Valuation allowance {44,224) (41,795)
$184,145 $157,806
Deferred tox liabilities:

Deferred contract costs $123,118 $103,298
Goodwill and intangible amortization 92,902 102,472
Currency tronslation adjustment 38,479 30,593
Depreciotion and amertization - 2,660
Other - -
$254,499  $235,023

The domestic federal net operating loss carryforward of $73,393
relates to the Exult and Reallife HR acquisitions and expires from
2017-2024. Al of the net operating losses are expected to he
utilized through 2024.

At September 30, 2007, the Company has availoble foreign net
operating losses of epproximately $161,821, of which $144,399
has already provided a U.S. tax benefit. The remaining net operating
toss carryforward of $17,422 includes $13,232 which expires at var-
ious dates between 2007 and 2022, and the remainder has an indef-
inite corryforward period. The foreign local country net operating
loss carryforwards of approximately $161,821 has o valuation
allowance of $161,061 offsetting the benefit. The valuation
allowance primarily represents loss carryforwards and deductible
temporary differences for which utilization is uncertain given the
lack of sustained profitability of foreign entities and/or limited
carryforward periods.

The Company has a tax holiday in a foreign country through
March 31, 2009. The tax benefit of the tax holiday for the current
fiscal year is approximately $5,600 or $0.05 per diluted share.

United States income toxes have not been provided on undistrib-
uted earnings of international subsidiories. Those earnings are con-
sidered to be indefinitely reinvested. Upon distribution of those
earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, the Company may be
subject to both U.5. income taxes (subject to adjustment for foreign
tax credits) and withholding taxes payable to the various foreign
countries.




21, Supplemental Cosh Flow Information

Hewitt Associates, [nc.

Year Ended September 30,

2007 2006 2005
Supplementary disclosure of cash paid during the year:
Interest paid $ 23,534 $20.497 $ 20,803
Income taxes paid 73,837 25,098 28,942
Schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Acquisition, cash paid, net of cash acquired:
Commeon stock issued and warrants acquired in connection
with acquisition, net of issuance costs $ - $ —  $652,378
Transaction costs - - (3,356)
Fair value of assets acquired (14,398) {805) (469.251)
Foir value of liahilities assumed 2,704 656 219872
Goodwill (33,868) (6,502) (406,369)
Cash paid, net of cash acquired (45,562) (6,651) (6,726)
Software ficenses purchosed under long-term ogreements - 836 2,926

22, Other income (Expense), Net
Other income {expense), net consists of the following components:

Year Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2005
Interest expense ${20,019) $(23,072) $(22,645)
Interest income 30,219 17,795 8,947
Gain on contribution
of business - 7.127 —
Goin on sale of investment 5,982 - -
Other 2,067 2,841 379
Otherincome

{expense), net $18,249 § 4691  $(13,319)

During the yeor ended September 30, 2007, the Company sold an
investment that was accounted for using the cost basis method of
accounting and had a net book value of $1,743. The Company’s sale
of this investment resulted in o goin of $5,982.

During the year ended September 30, 2006, the Company recog-
nized a goin of $7,127 in connection with the contribution of its
retirement and financigl manogement business within Germany in
exchange for an increased investment in o German actuerial busi-
ness (“investee”). The Company currently has a 28% non-controlling
interest in the investee and accounts for its investment under the
equity method of accounting.

23. Segments and Geographic Dato

Under SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information, the Company has determined that it has three
reportable segments based on similarities among the operoting
units including homogeneity of services, service delivery methods
and use of technology. The three segments ore Benefits Qutsourcing,
HR BPO and Consulting.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company conducted
o detoiled review of the Qutsourcing business. Driving this review
was the fact that HR BPO beceme an increasingly important focus
for management and o key line of business. Further, the Company
realigned organizationai resources in a way that focuses more spe-
cific resources to HR BPO and Benefits Outsourcing. Alignment of
cost drivers coupled with cost analysis activities allowed manage-
ment to identify ond quantify costs and related consumption drivers
specific to HR BPO and Benefits Qutsourcing. Following this review,
the Company determined that Outsourcing should be broken into
twa reportable segments, Benefits Qutsourcing and HR BPO.

In addition to the realignment of the Qutsourcing business, the
Company completed o detoited review of shared service costs to
determine which of these costs should be distributed to the business
segments os well as how these shared service costs should be dis-
tributed to the business segments. The review resulted in chonges to
the way previously unallocoted costs were distributed to the busi-
ness segments and the distribution of previously unallocated costs
to the business segments. Improved data and anclytical capabilities
have provided insight into costs that were previously not attribut-
able to specific business segment activity. This includes expenses
related to business leadership that could be attributed to specific
reportable segments.

The Company also revised its allocation methodoelogies associ-
ated with shared service costs. The new methodologies assign costs
based on usage and consumption factors such as computer usage
ond square footoge occupied rather thon previously used factors
such as headcount. The new methodolagies are intended to improve
ownership and manogement of overheod spending. The effect of
these changes impacted the costs reported within each segment and
reduced the level of uncllocoted shared service costs.
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As aresult of the segregation of Qutsourcing, the Company now
has three reportable segments: Benefits Outsourcing, HR BPQ ond
Consulting.

- Benefits Outsourcing—Hewitt offers henefits administrative
services for health and welfare (e.g., medical) plans, defined con-
tribution (e.g., 401(k}) plans and defined benefit {e.q.. pension)
plans. Through these services, companies are able to control ben-
efit costs while meeting employees’ expectations for enhanced
benefit services.

HR BPO—Hewitt offers workforce administration, rewards man-
agement, recruiting and staffing, payroll processing, performance
management, learning and development, talent manogement,
relocation services, time and attendance, accounts payable,
procurement expertise and vendor manggement services. These
services enable companies to reduce costs and focus on their
core business while gaining expertise and access to current and
innovative technology and processes through the economies of
scale created by using repeatable processes and standardized
technologies.

Consulting—Hewitt provides a wide array of consulting and actu-
ariol services covering the design, implementation, communica-
tion ond operation of health and welfare, compensation and
retirement plans, ond broader human resources programs and
processes.
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The Campany operates many of the administrative and support func-
tions of its business through the use of centralized shared service
operations to provide an econemical and effective means of support-
ing the operating segments. These shared services include informa-
tion technology services, client support services, human resources,
management, corporate relations, finance, general counsel, real
estate management, supplier management and other supporting
services. Many of these costs, such as information technology serv-
ices, human resources, regl estate management and other support
services, are assigned to the business segments based on usage and
consumption factors. Certain unallocated costs, within finance, gen-
eral counsel, management and corporate relations, are not allocated
to the business segments and remain in unallocated shared service
costs.

The Company has recast the fiscal 2006 results for comparative
purposes; however, fiscal 2005 segment results have not been
recast as it was not practical to do so. As o result, the fiscal 2005
segment results do not reflect the new allocation methodologies
associoted with shared service costs nor the distribution of certain
unallocated shared service costs into segment results adopted in the
second quarter of fiscol 2007 ond are not comparable to fiscal 2006
or fiscal 2007,




Hewitt Associotes, Inc.

The table below presents infermation about the Company's reportable segments for the periods presented:

Year Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2005

Benefits Qutsourcing
Segment revenues before reimbursements
Segmentincome

Net client receivables and unbilled work in process

Long-term unbilled work in process
Goodwill and intangible ossets
Deferred contract costs

HRBPO
Segment revenues before reimbursements
Segment loss

Net client receivables and unbilled work in process

Long-term unbilled work in process
Goodwill and intangible assets
Deferred contract costs

Consulting
Segment revenues befare reimbursements
Segment income

Net client receivables and unbilled work in process

Long-term unbilled work in pracess
Goodwill and intangible assets
Deferred controct costs

Total Company
Segment revenues before reimbursements
Intersegment revenues

$1,475,332 $1,465,710 $1,418,414

306,199 321,735 293,546
249,247 274,577
658 2,504
54,829 28,758
133,047 105,977

$ 539,407 $ 517.502 $ 632,230
(495,219)  (423,407) (116,542)
121,995 87,661

3,894 7.788
112,663 424,969
237,746 181,537

$ 945905 % 842616 $ 802810
147,261 137,028 196,388
260,769 260,032

- 206
347,955 333,303
1,570 2,140

$2,960,644 $2,825828 $2,853,454
(39,568) (37,106) (21,947)

Revenues before reimbursements (net revenues)

Reimbursements

2,921,076 2,788,722 2,831,507
69,250 68,439 58,143

Total revenues

$2,990,326 $2,857,161 $2,889,650

Segment (loss) income

Charges not recorded at the Segment level—
Initinl public offering restricted stock awards

Unallocated shared costs

S (41,759) § 35356 % 373,392

- 9,397 17,355
101,208 90.220 122,203

Operating (loss) income

$ (142,967) $ (64.261) $ 233.834

Net client receivables and unbilled work in process

Long-term unbilled work in process
Goodwill and certain intangible assets
Deferred contract costs

Assets not reported by segment

$ 632,011 § 622,270
4,552 10,458
515,447 787,030
372,363 289,654
1,231,165 1,058,226

Total assets

$2,755,538 $2.767.,678
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Revenues and long-lived assets by geographic area for the following
fiscal years are provided below. Revenues are attributed to geo-
graphic areas bosed on the country where the associates perform
the services. Long-lived assets include net property and equipment,
deferred contract costs, goodwill and intangible assets, such as cap-
italized software, but exclude investments in affilicted companies.

Year Ended September 30,

2007 2006 2005

Revenues
United States $2,269,966 $2,238,901 $2,271,639
United Kingdom 370,980 344,533 362,541
Al other countries 349,380 273,727 255,470

Total $2,990,326 $2,857,161 $2,889,650
Long-Lived Assets
United States $ 768,845 § 948,473
United Kingdom 348,836 373,481
All other countries 137,981 183,909

Total $1,255,662 $1,505,863

24. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following tables set forth the historical unoudited quarterly
financial dato for the periods indicated. The information for each of
these periods hos been prepared on the same basis as the audited
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, reflects all

adjustments consisting only of normai recurring adjustments nec-
essary to present fairly our financial results. Operating results for
previous periods do not necessarily indicate results that moy be
achieved in any future period. Amounts are in thousands, except
earnings per share information.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quaorter Quorter Quarter
Fiscal 2007:
Revenues:
Revenues before reimbursements {net revenues) $726,630 $716,203 $ 727,982 $ 750,261
Reimbursements 19,420 17,605 14,330 17,895
Total revenues $746,050 $733,808 $ 742,312 $ 768,156
Operating income (loss)™ 46,533 18,765 72,372 (280,637)
Net income (loss)™ $ 30,065 $ 12,986 $ 47,505 $(265,636)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic $ 0.28 $ 012 $ 0.44 S (2.51)
Diluted $  0.27 5 012 $ 0.43 3 (2.51)
Fiscal 2006:
Revenues:
Revenues before reimbursements (net revenues) $701,047 $676,153 $ 698,174 $713.348
Reimbursements 18,646 19,264 16,271 14,258
Total revenues $719.693 $695,417 $ 714,445 $ 727,606
Operating income (loss)® 49,815 51,189 (207.684) 42,419
Net income (loss)™ $ 31,532 $ 31,782 $(202,247) $ 22,995
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic $ 0.29 $ 0.30 $ (1.88) g 0.21
Diluted $ 0.29 $ 0.29 $ (1.88) $ 0.21

WEgurth quorter fiscal 2007 resalts include non-cash pre-tax charges of $326,312 related to impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and contract Joss provisions; o pre-tox
charge of $29,339 related to the review of our real estate portfolio; and a pre-tax severance charge of $8,032 resulting from ongoing productivity initiatives across the business.

@Third quorter fiscal 2006 results include non-cash charges of $248,857 reloted to HR BPO.
YFgurth quarter fiscal 2006 results include the reversal of non-cash charges of $5.054 related to the correction of on error in the third quorter which was not deemed moteriol to

the quorter.

25. Regulated Subsidiary

Hewitt Financial Services LLC (*HFS™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, is a registered U.5. broker-dealer. HFS is subject to the
Securities and Exchonge Commission’s minimum net capital rule
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(Rule 15¢3-1), which requires that HFS at oll times maintain net cap-
ital (os defined) equal to the greater of $50,000 or 67/1% of aggre-
gate indebtedness, {as defined). As of September 30, 2007 and
2006, HFS has met its net capital requirements.




Performance measurement comparison

The graph betow depicts total cumulative stockholder return on view of the current competitive landscape. The groph assumes
$100 invested on September 30, 2002, in (1) Hewitt Associates, reinvestment of dividends.

Inc. Class A common stock, {2) the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index,

(3} anindustry peer group index comprised of the common stock of
publicly held competitors of the Company, and (4) an industry peer
group index previously utilized by the Company. The peer group
waos recently updated to include Convergys Corporation and Marsh
& McLennan Companies, Inc. and exclude BearingPoint, Inc. and
Paychex, Inc. This group more appropriately reflects management's

The Company continues to compile its own peer group as it does not
believe an appropriate independently compiled industry peer group
index exists. The index developed by the Company represents its
judgment of its closest competitors for which there is o public stock
price. Several of the Company’s closest competitors are not publicly
held; thus, these competitors are not included in the index.

$250.00
$200.00
$ 15000
$100.00
$50.00 . I __
£0.00
902 9/03 9/04 9/05 9706 9/07
e——— Hewilt Associates, [ng.  =emiem New Peer Group
...... S&P 500 = === 01d Peer Group
Cumulative Totol Return
9/0zm 9/03M 9/04wm g/Q5t 9/06M 9/07
Hewitt Associates, Inc. 100.00 82.43 89.57 92.35 8213 118.65
S&P500® 100.00 124.38 141,58 158.89 175.99 204.87
New Peer Group®™ 100.00 120.47 128.83 121.30 133.98 14412
0Old Peer Group® 100.00 12577 136.08 14581 i61.86 179.88

@ Return as of the last business doy of the month.
@ Copyright® 2002 Standard & Poar's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. All rights reserved.

O Comprised of Accenture Ltd., Affiliated Computer Services, Automatic Dato Processing, Inc., Ceridion Corporation, Convergys
Corporation, Electronic Daia Systems, Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc., and Watson Wyatt & Company Holdings.

@ Comprised of Accenture Ltd., Affiliated Computer Services, Automatic Data Processing, Inc., BearingPoint, Inc., Ceridian
Corparetion, Electrenic Dota Systems, Paychex, [nc., and Watson Wyatt & Company Holdings. This Peer Group included
ProBusiness Services, Inc. prior to its acquisition by Autematic Data Processing, Inc. and Exult, Inc., priorto its acquisition by
the Company.
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